DISSERTATIONES MATHEMATICAE

(ROZPRAWY MATEMATYCZNE)

KOMITET REDAKCYJNY

KAROL BORSUK redaktor
ANDRZEJ BIAŁYNICKI-BIRULA, BOGDAN BOJARSKI,
ZBIGNIEW CIESIELSKI, JERZY ŁOŚ, WIKTOR MAREK,
ZBIGNIEW SEMADENI

CLXXXIII

TADEUSZ STYŚ

A discrete maximum principle

WARSZAWA 1981

PAŃSTWOWE WYDAWNICTWO NAUKOWE



PRINTED IN POLAND

© Copyright by Państwowe Wydawnictwo Naukowe, Warszawa, 1981

ISBN 83-01-01119-X

ISSN 0012-3862

CONTENTS

Introduction	5
§ 1. A maximum principle for linear mappings	ć
§ 2. A maximum principle for nonlinear mappings	ç
§ 3. A finite difference analogue of a maximum principle for nonlinear elliptic equations	s [1
§ 4. A finite difference scheme of higher order accuracy	16
§ 5. A maximum principle for systems of ordinary differential equations	23
§ 6. The method of lines for nonlinear parabolic equations which can be degenerated	i
to elliptic equations.	27
§ 7. A geometrical interpretation of a maximum principle for a system of difference	е
equations	30
§ 8. A strong maximum principle for an elliptic system of nonlinear equations	33
References.	41

Introduction

In the numerical analysis of finite difference methods a discrete maximum principle plays a central role. In papers [6], [16], this principle is presented for finite difference schemes in the canonical form with a finite difference operator of "positive type" In [17], R. S. Varga gave a discrete maximum principle for an $N \times N$ matrix A. R. S. Varga's maximum principle includes a class of coherent matrices with operators of positive type and furthermore can be applied to operators which are not of positive type. A description of these maximum principles is presented in § 1. In § 2 (cf. [12]) we propose an extension of R. S. Varga's maximum principle to nonlinear mappings and to an a priori estimation. An application of these extensions of the maximum principle is given in § 3. Namely, in § 3 (cf. [12]) we prove a difference analogue of the maximum principle for nonlinear elliptic equations with boundary value conditions of the first, second and third kinds. In particular, we prove that a solution v of the difference schema (3.3) attains its maximum on that part of the boundary $\partial \Omega_h$ of a net Ω_h on which the Dirichlet's condition is given.

As we mentioned above, there exist finite difference schemes which satisfy R. S. Varga's maximum principle and which are not in a canonical form with an operator of positive type. Such a finite difference scheme for nonlinear elliptic equations is considered in § 4. Also, in § 4 we solve a nonlinear elliptic equation by a finite difference method of higher order accuracy.

In § 5 we propose a new maximum principle for ordinary differential operators and present its satisfactory conditions. We use this maximum principle in the proof of convergence of the method of lines for nonlinear parabolic equations

$$k(t, x)u_t = G(t, x, u, u_{x_1}, ..., u_{x_p}, u_{x_1x_1}, ..., u_{x_px_p}),$$

which can be degenerated to elliptic equations (cf. § 6 and [9]).

We face another situation when approximating systems of differential equations by the finite difference methods. Then we approximate a vector-function $\vec{u} = (u_1, u_2, ..., u_n)$. This fact must be taken into consideration in a definition of a maximum principle. In § 7 and 8 (cf. [10], [11]) we present

certain sufficient conditions of satisfying a maximum principle which concerns direction and length of a solution $\vec{u} = (u_1, u_2, ..., u_n)$ of a system of finite difference equations approximating an elliptic system of differential equations.

§ 1. A maximum principle for linear mappings

A discrete maximum principle is a finite difference analogue of Hopf's theorem [2]. Below we present this principle for an operator of "positive type" (cf. [6], [16]).

A net. Let \mathscr{X} be a set of isolated points $x=(x_1,x_2,...,x_N)$ of the real space R^N A finite subset $\mathscr{N}(x) \subset \mathscr{X}$ such that $x \in \mathscr{N}(x)$ is called the neighbourhood of x. Let $\bar{\Omega}$ be a non-empty subset of \mathscr{X} . The set

$$\partial\Omega = \{x \in \overline{\Omega} : \text{ there exists a } y \in \mathcal{X} - \overline{\Omega} \text{ such that } x \in \mathcal{N}(y) \text{ or } y \in \mathcal{N}(x)\}.$$

is called the boundary of $\bar{\Omega}$. We define the interior Ω of the set $\bar{\Omega}$ as follows: $\Omega = \bar{\Omega} - \partial \Omega$.

The set $\overline{\Omega}$ with the boundary $\partial\Omega$ and the interior Ω is called a net.

A connected net. A set $\bar{\Omega}$ is said to be a connected net if and only if for every couple of points x, $y \in \bar{\Omega}$, $x \in \Omega$, there exists a finite sequence $\{x^n\}_{n=1}^m$ such that

- a) $x^n \in \bar{\Omega}$,
- b) $x^{n+1} \in \mathcal{N}(x^n), n = 1, 2, ..., m-1,$
- c) $x^1 = x$, $x^m = y$,

A weak connected net. A set $\bar{\Omega}$ is said to be a weak connected net if and only if for every $x \in \Omega$ there exist a $y \in \partial \Omega$ and a sequence $\{x^n\}_{n=1}^m$ for which conditions a), b), c) hold.

Remark 1. If a connected net $\bar{\Omega}$ has a non-empty boundary $\partial \Omega$, then $\bar{\Omega}$ is also a weak connected net, but the contrary does not hold in general.

A dense family of nets. Finite difference schemes are considered on a family of nets which is dense in the real space R^N , A dense family of nets is defined as follows: Assume a parameter $h \in H \subset (0,1]$ and let $\inf H = 0$. With a parameter h we join a family $\{X_h\}$, where X_h is a set of isolated points $x \in R^N$ such that

C = const > 0, $\varrho(x, y) - \text{a distance from a point } x \text{ to } y$.

A family $\{\bar{\Omega}_h\}$ of nets $\bar{\Omega}_h \subset X_h$, $h \in H$, is called *dense* if a set \mathcal{X}_h satisfies condition (1.1) for every $h \in H$.

An operator of positive type. A linear operator α is said to be of positive type if the following conditions are satisfied:

a)
$$\alpha[u](x) \equiv \sum_{y \in \Gamma(x)} a(x, y) u(y)$$
 for $x \in \Omega$,

- b) a(x, y) real functions which are defined for $x \in \Omega$, $y \in \overline{\Omega}$,
- c) a(x, y) < 0 for $x \neq y$, $x \in \Omega$, $y \in A^*(x)$,

d)
$$\sum_{y \in \mathcal{X}(x)} a(x, y) \ge 0, x \in \mathcal{X}(x),$$

where a function u(x) is defined on $\overline{\Omega}$.

A strong maximum principle. Let u(x) be a real function defined on a connected net Ω . If the function u(x) attains its positive maximum (or negative minimum) at a point $x \in \Omega$ and if

$$\alpha[u](x) \leq 0$$
 for $x \in \Omega$ (or $\alpha[u](x) \geq 0$ for $x \in \Omega$),

then $u(x) \equiv \text{const.}$

A maximum principle. Let u(x) be a real function which is defined on a weak connected net $\bar{\Omega}$. If the inequality

$$\alpha[u](x) \leq 0$$
 for $x \in \Omega$ (or $\alpha[u](x) \geq 0$ for $x \in \Omega$),

is satisfied, then

$$u(x) \leq \max \{0, \max_{y \in \partial \Omega} u(y)\} \quad (u(x) \geq \min \{0, \min_{y \in \partial \Omega} u(y)\}),$$

The above maximum principles imply convergence of the following finite difference schemes:

(1.2)
$$\alpha_h[u](x) = \varphi(x) \quad \text{for} \quad x \in \Omega_h,$$

(1.3)
$$u(x) = \psi(x) \quad \text{for} \quad x \in \partial \Omega_h,$$

where α_h – an operator of the positive type.

A finite difference schemes (1.2) and (1.3) is called canonical (cf. [6]).

A maximum principle for an $N \times N$ matrix A. In [17] R. S. Varga considers a maximum for an $N \times N$ matrix A. R. S. Varga's maximum principle also implies convergence of finite difference schemes of the form (1.2), (1.3). Moreover, this principle can be applied in the analysis of finite difference schemes of different form from (1.2), (1.3) (cf. § 4).

Let $V_N(C)$ be an $N \times N$ vector-space with elements $z = (z_1, z_2, ..., z_N)^T$ and complex components $z_i \in C$, i = 1, 2, ..., N, and let S^n be a subspace of $V_N(C)$ spanned by vectors $\delta_j \in \{e_1, e_2, ..., e_N\}$ $1 \le j \le N$, $e_i = (\delta_{1i}, \delta_{2i}, ..., \delta_{Ni})$ (i = 1, 2, ..., N). The projection of a vector z on the subspace S^n we denote by $P_S z$, where P_S = diagonal $(d_1, d_2, ..., d_N)$, $d_i = 0$ if $e_i \notin S^n$ and $d_i = 1$ if $e_i \in S^n$ (i = 1, 2, ..., N).

DEFINITION 1.1. An $N \times N$ matrix A satisfies a maximum principle with

respect to a subspace S^n of $V_N(C)$ (in symbols $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$) if and only if every solution z of $Az = P_S b$ satisfies the inequality

$$|z|_{\infty} \leqslant |P_S b|_{\infty}$$
 for any $b \in V_N(C)$,

where $|z|_{\infty} = \max_{i} |z_{i}|$.

In [17] R.S. Varga presents the following sufficient and necessary condition for this maximum principle:

LEMMA 1.1. An $N \times N$ matrix A belongs to \mathfrak{M}_S if and only if there exists an A^{-1} and $|A^{-1}P_S|_{\infty} \leq 1$, where $|A|_{\infty} = \max_i \sum_j |A_{ij}|$, $A = (A_{ij})$.

The relation $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$ is equivalent to the conditions: there exists an A^{-1} , $A^{-1}P_S \ge 0$ ($A = (A_{ij}) \ge 0$ if $A_{ij} \ge 0$, i, j = 1, 2, ..., N) and a matrix A is normalized with respect to a subspace S^n of $V_N(C)$ in the following sense:

DEFINITION 1.2. An $N \times N$ matrix A is normalized with respect to a subspace S^n of $V_N(C)$ (in symbols $A \in \mathfrak{N}_S$) if and only if $A\xi = P_S \xi$ for $\xi = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T$

To verify the relation $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$ we can also use the following corollaries resulting from Lemma 1.1.

COROLLARY 1.1. If a monotone matrix A belongs to \mathfrak{N}_S , then $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$. COROLLARY 1.2. If a matrix B belongs to $\mathfrak{N}_S \cap \mathfrak{M}_S$ and if a nonsingular

matrix A satisfies the inequality

$$|A^{-1}P_S|\leqslant B^{-1}P_S,$$

then $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$, where $|A| = (|A_{ij}|)$.

The classes \mathfrak{M}_S and K_S . Let us consider the class K_S of coherent matrices of operators of positive type.

$$K_{S} = \{ A = (A_{ij})_{i,j=1}^{N} : A_{ij} = a(x^{i}, y^{j}) \text{ for } x^{i} \in \Omega \text{ and } y^{j} \in N(x^{i}),$$

$$A_{ij} = 0 \text{ for } x^{i} \in \Omega \text{ and } y^{i} \notin N(x^{i}) \text{ or } x^{i} \in \partial \Omega \text{ and } i \neq j,$$

$$A_{ii} = 1 \text{ for } x^{i} \in \partial \Omega \},$$

where a(x, y) — coefficients of an operator α of positive type which is defined on a connected net $\bar{\Omega}$, $x^i = (x_1^i, x_2^i, ..., x_p^i) \in \bar{\Omega}$, an index i follows from the lexicographical ordering of points of the net $\bar{\Omega}$, N is a number of points of $\bar{\Omega}$.

Let S be a subspace of R^N spanned by vectors e_i for $i \in I_S = \{j: x^j = (x_1^j, x_2^j, ..., x_p^j) \in \partial \Omega\}$.

Now, we shall prove that if an $N \times N$ matrix A belongs to K_S , then $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$. Namely, let us observe that every matrix A belonging to the class K_S is of positive type in the sense of the following definition:

Definition 1.3 (cf. [1]). A matrix $B = (B_{ji})$ is said to be of positive type if the following conditions are satisfied:

- a') $B_{ji} \leq 0$ for $j \neq i$,
- b') $\sum_{k} B_{jk} \ge 0$ for all j, and further there exists a non-empty subset J(B) of the integers 1, 2, ..., N such that $\sum_{k} B_{jk} > 0$ for all $j \in J(B)$,
- c') for $i \notin J(B)$ there exists a $j \in J(B)$ and a sequence of non-zero elements of B of the form $B_{jk_1}, B_{k_1k_2}, ..., B_{k_rj}$.

From the definition of an operator α of positive type and from the definition of K_S we have

$$A_{ji} \leq 0$$
 for $j \neq i$

and

$$\sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{ji} \ge 0 \quad \text{for} \quad i = 1, 2, ..., N.$$

Furthermore, from the assumption that the net $\bar{\Omega}$ is connected and from the condition c') of the definition of an operator of positive type α it follows that for every $i \notin I_S = J(A)$ there exists a sequence of non-zero elements of A of the form

$$a(x^{i}, y^{k_{1}}), a(x^{k_{1}}, y^{k_{2}}), ..., a(x^{k_{r}}, y^{j}),$$

where $y^{k_s} \in \mathcal{N}(x^{k_s-1})$, s = 1, 2, ..., r. We also have

(1.4)
$$\sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{ji} = 1 \quad \text{for} \quad j \in I_{S}.$$

Thus, all the conditions of Definition 1.3 are satisfied and therefore the matrix A is of positive type. On the other hand, every matrix A of positive type is monotone (cf. [1]). Let $B = A - \overline{A}$, where $\overline{A} = \text{diagonal } (A_1, A_2, ..., A_N)$, $A_j = \sum_{i=1}^{N} A_{ji}$ if $j \notin I_S$ and $A_i = 0$ if $j \in I_S$. Since the matrix $B \in \mathfrak{N}_S \cap \mathfrak{M}_S$

(cf. (1.4) and Corrollary 1.1), then from Corollary 1.2 it follows that $A \in \mathfrak{M}_S$.

Remark 2. In the class \mathfrak{M}_S there exist matrices which do not belong to K_S . We meet such matrices when approximating differential equations with a higher order of accuracy than two, (cf. [1], § 4).

§ 2. A maximum principle for nonlinear mappings

Below, we present an extension of R. S. Varga's maximum principle to nonlinear mappings (cf. [12]) and to a priori estimations. Next, we use this extension to prove stability finite difference schemes for nonlinear elliptic equations with boundary value conditions of the first second and third kinds (cf. § 3).

Let us consider the following system of nonlinear equations:

(2.1)
$$f(\vec{v}) = \vec{b}, \quad \vec{b} = (b^1, b^2, ..., b^N)^T \in \mathbb{R}^N,$$

where a vector-function $f(v) = (f^1(v), f^2(v), ..., f^N(v))^T$ is defined for $\vec{v} = (v_1, v_2, ..., v_N)^T \in D^N$, $D^N - a$ domain of R^N

DEFINITION 2.1. A mapping $f(\vec{v})$ satisfies a maximum principle with respect to a subspace S of the space R^N (in symbols $f \in \mathfrak{M}_S$) if and only if for any vector $\vec{b} \in R^N$ every solution \vec{z} of $f(\vec{v}) = P_S \vec{b}$ satisfies the inequality

$$|\vec{z}|_{\infty} \leqslant |P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty}.$$

From Lemma 1.1 it follows that a vector-function $f(\vec{v})$ satisfies the maximum principle if for every $\vec{v} \in D^N$ there exists a matrix $A(\vec{v})$ such that

$$f(\vec{v}) = A(\vec{v})\vec{v}$$

and $A(v) \in \mathfrak{M}_{S}$.

If a vector-function f(v) is continuously differentiable in D^N and if f(0) = 0, (here we assume that $O = (0, 0, ..., 0) \in D^N$), then for every $\vec{v} \in D^N$ there exists a $\theta = (\theta_1, \theta_2, ..., \theta_N)$, $0 < \theta_i < 1$ (i = 1, 2, ..., N), such that the matrix

(2.2)
$$M(\vec{v},\theta) = \frac{\partial f^{i}(\vec{v}\theta_{i})}{\partial v_{k}} \qquad (i,k=1,2,...,N),$$

satisfies the condition $f(\vec{v}) = M(\vec{v}, \theta) \vec{v}$.

Of course, then $f \in \mathfrak{M}_S$ if $M(\vec{v}, \theta) \in \mathfrak{M}_S$ for $\vec{v} \in D^N$

Now, we present an extension of this maximum principle to an a priori estimation.

DEFINITION 2.2. A mapping $f(\vec{v})$ satisfies a maximum principle as an a priori estimation with respect to a subspace S of the space R^N and with respect to a constant K (in symbols $f \in \mathfrak{M}_S(K)$) if and only if for any $\vec{b} \in R^N$ every solution z of (2.1) satisfies the inequality

$$|\vec{z}|_{\infty} \leq |P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty} + K |(E - P_S) \vec{b}|_{\infty},$$

where E is the unit matrix.

A sufficient condition for satisfying the relation $f \in \mathfrak{M}_S(K)$ can be written as follows:

THEOREM 2.1. If there exist a vector $\vec{\alpha} \in \mathbb{R}^N$ and a monotone matrix A(v) such that for $v \in D^N$

$$f(\vec{v}) = A(\vec{v})\vec{v},$$

$$A(\vec{v})\xi \ge P_S\xi, \quad \xi = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T,$$

$$A(\vec{v})\vec{\alpha} \ge (E - P_S)\xi,$$

then $f \in \mathfrak{M}_{S}(|\alpha|_{\infty})$.

Proof. Let $\vec{g} = |P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty} \xi + |(E - P_S) \vec{b}| \vec{\alpha}$ and let \vec{z} be a solution of $f'(\vec{v}) = \vec{b}$. Then, we have

$$A(\vec{z})(\vec{g}+\vec{z}) = |P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty} A(\vec{z}) \xi + |(E-P_S) \vec{b}|_{\infty} A(\vec{z}) \vec{\alpha} + \vec{b}$$

$$\geq |P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty} P_S \xi + |(E-P_S) \vec{b}|_{\infty} (E-P_S) \xi + \vec{b} \geq 0.$$

Since the matrix $A(\vec{z})$ is monotone,

$$\vec{g} + \vec{z} \ge 0$$
.

Hence, we have $|\vec{z}|_{\infty} \leq |\vec{g}|_{\infty} \leq |P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty} + |\vec{\alpha}|_{\infty} |(E - P_S) \vec{b}|_{\alpha}$. Thus the theorem is proved.

§ 3. A finite difference analogue of a maximum principle for nonlinear elliptic equations

A boundary value problem. Let us consider the following boundary value problem:

(3.1)
$$G(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) = \varphi(x) \quad \text{for} \quad x \in D^p,$$

(3.2)
$$B(x) \frac{du}{dn} + C(x)u = \psi(x) \quad \text{for} \quad x \in \partial D^p,$$

where $x = (x_1, x_2, ..., x_p)$, u = u(x), $u_x = (u_{x_1}, u_{x_2}, ..., u_{x_p})$, $u_{xx} = (u_{x_1x_1}, u_{x_2x_2}, ..., u_{x_px_p})$, $\frac{du}{dn} - a$ normal vector, $D^p = \{x \in R^p : 0 < x_i < 1, i = 1, 2, ..., p\}$, ∂D^p – the boundary of D^p

The assumptions. 1° The function G(x,q,r,s), $r=(r_1,r_2,...,r_p)$, $s=(s_1,s_2,...,s_p)$ is defined in $D^p\times R^{2p+1}$ and continuously differentiable with respect to variables $q,r_1,r_2,...,r_p,s_1,...,s_p$, G(x,0,0,0)=0 for $x\in D^p$, $G_q(x,q,r,s)\leqslant 0$ for $(x,q,r,s)\in D^p\times R^{2p+1}$, the given functions $B(x)\geqslant 0$, $C(x)\geqslant 0$, $\psi(x)$ and $\varphi(x)$ are bounded on ∂D^p and D^p , respectively, B(x)+C(x)>0 for $x\in \partial D^p$, there exists a point $\overline{x}\subseteq D^p$ such that $G_q(\overline{x},q,r,s)<0$ for $(q,r,s)\in R^{2p+1}$ or there exists a point $\overline{x}\in \partial D^p$ such that $C(\overline{x})>0$.

2° There exist functions $\mu_j(q,r,s) > 0$, $L_j(q,r,s)$ and constants $K_j > 0$, (j = 1, 2, ..., p) such that

$$\frac{\partial G}{\partial s_j}(x, q, r, s) \ge \mu(q, r, s),$$

$$\left|\frac{\partial G}{\partial r_j}(x, q, r, s)\right| \le L_j(q, r, s),$$

$$L_j(q, r, s) \le K_j \mu_j(q, r, s),$$

for $(x, q, r, s) \in D^p \times R^{2p+1}$.

A finite difference scheme. Let $\bar{\Omega}_h$ be a net defined as follows:

$$\begin{split} \bar{\Omega}_h &= \{ih = i_1 \, h_1 \,, \, i_2 \, h_2 \,, \, \dots, \, i_p \, h_p \}; \ i = (i_1 \,, i_2 \,, \, \dots, \, i_p) \, - \, \text{integers}, \\ &\quad 0 \leqslant i_s \leqslant N_s \,, \ N_s \, h_s = 1 \,, \ s = 1 \,, \, 2 \,, \, \dots, \, p \} \,, \\ &\hat{c}\Omega_h = \hat{c}^0 \, \Omega_h \cup \hat{c}^N \, \Omega_h \,, \quad \hat{c}^0 \, \Omega_h = \bigcup_{l=1}^p \, \hat{c}_l^0 \, \Omega_h \,, \quad \hat{c}^N \, \Omega_h = \bigcup_{l=1}^p \, \hat{c}_l^N \, \Omega_h \,, \\ &\hat{c}_l^0 \, \Omega_h = \{ih = (i_1 \, h_1 \,, \, i_2 \, h_2 \,, \, \dots, \, i_p \, h_p) \in \bar{\Omega}_h; \ i_l = 0 \} \,, \\ &\hat{c}_l^N \, \Omega_h = \{ih = (i_1 \, h_1 \,, \, i_2 \, h_2 \,, \, \dots, \, i_p \, h_p) \in \bar{\Omega}_h; \ i_l = N_l \} \,, \quad \Omega_h = \bar{\Omega}_h - \hat{c}\Omega_l \,. \end{split}$$

Next, let v^i be a value of a function v at the nodal point $(i_1 h_1, i_2 h_2, ..., i_p h_p)$ and let

$$\Delta_{s} v^{i} = \frac{1}{h_{s}} \left(v \left(i_{1} h_{1}, i_{2} h_{2}, \dots, (i_{s}+1) h_{s}, \dots, i_{p} h_{p} \right) - v^{i} \right),$$

$$\nabla_{s} v^{i} = \frac{1}{h_{s}} \left(v^{i} - v \left(i_{1} h_{1}, i_{2} h_{2}, \dots, (i_{s}+1) h_{s}, \dots, i_{p} h_{p} \right) \right),$$

$$\bar{\Delta}_{s} v^{i} = \frac{1}{2} \left(\Delta_{s} + \nabla_{s} \right) v^{i},$$

$$\Delta v^{i} = \left(\Delta_{1} v^{i}, \Delta_{2} v^{i}, \dots, \Delta_{p} v^{i} \right),$$

$$\nabla v^{i} = \left(\nabla_{1} v^{i}, \nabla_{2} v^{i}, \dots, \nabla_{p} v^{i} \right).$$

Now, we can write a difference scheme for Problems (2.1) and (2.2).

(3.3)
$$G(ih, v^i, \bar{\Delta}v^i, \Delta \nabla v^i) = \varphi^i, \quad ih \in \Omega_h,$$

$$(3.4) Bi \Deltas vi + Ci vi = \psii, ih \in \partial_i^0 \Omega_h,$$

(3.5)
$$B^{i} V_{s} v^{i} + C^{i} v^{i} = \psi^{i}, \quad ih \in \partial_{l}^{N} \Omega_{h},$$

Below, we shall write the difference scheme (2.3), (2.4), (2.5) in the form

$$(3.6) f(\vec{v}) = \vec{b}$$

where $\vec{v} = (v^1, v^2, ..., v^N)^T$, $N = (N_1 + 1)(N_2 + 1)...(N_p + 1)$, $v^{m(l)} = v(ih)$, an index m(i) follows from the lexicographical ordering of points of the net $\bar{\Omega}_h$, $\vec{b} = (b^1, b^2, ..., b^N)^T$,

$$(3.7) b^{m(i)} = \begin{cases} -\varphi^{i}, & ih \in \Omega_{h}, \\ \varphi^{i}, & ih \in \partial\Omega_{h}, \end{cases}$$

$$f(\vec{v}) = (f^{1}(\vec{v}), f^{2}(\vec{v}), ..., f^{N}(\vec{v}))^{T}$$

$$(3.8) f^{m(i)}(\vec{v}) = \begin{cases} -G(ih, v^{i}, \bar{\Delta}v^{i}, \Delta \bar{V}v^{i}), & ih \in \Omega_{h}, \\ B^{i} \Delta_{s} v^{i} + C^{i} v^{i}, & ih \in \partial_{s}^{0} \Omega_{h}, s = 1, 2, ..., p, \\ B^{i} \bar{V}_{s} v^{i} + C^{i} v^{i}, & ih \in \partial_{s}^{N} \Omega_{h}, s = 1, 2, ..., p, \end{cases}$$

A priori estimations. To estimate a solution v of the system of equations (3.6) we shall first prove the following theorem:

THEOREM 3.1. If $h_j \le h_0 = \min_{i} (1/K_i)$ (j = 1, 2, ..., p), then the matrix

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta) = \left(\frac{\partial f^{j}(\vec{v}\theta_{j})}{\partial v_{k}}\right), \quad (j, k = 1, 2, ..., N),$$

is of positive type for every $\vec{v} \in \mathbb{R}^N$, $\theta = (\theta_1, \theta_2, ..., \theta_N)$, $0 < \theta_j < 1$, (j = 1, 2, ..., N). (j = 1, 2, ..., N).

Proof. From (3.8) if follows that

Proof. From (3.8) if follows that
$$\begin{cases}
2 \sum_{l=1}^{p} \frac{1}{h_{l}^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s_{l}} - \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial q^{i}}, & k = m(i), ih \in \Omega_{h}, \\
-\frac{1}{h_{l}^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{l}}{\partial s_{i}} + \frac{1}{2h_{l}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial r_{l}}, & k = m(i) + (N_{1} + 1)(N_{2} + 1) \dots (N_{l} + 1), \\
l = 1, 2, \dots, p, ih \in \Omega_{h}, & l = 1, 2, \dots, p, \\
-\frac{1}{h_{l}} B^{i} + C^{i}, & k = m(i), ih \in \partial_{l}^{0} \Omega_{h} \cup \partial_{l}^{N} \Omega_{h}, l = 1, 2, \dots, p, \\
-\frac{1}{h_{i}} B^{i}, & this element appears in the row $m(i)$ $ih \in \partial \Omega_{h}$ only once, the remaining elements of M are equal to zero.$$

Let us observe that the matrix $M(\vec{v}, \theta)$ satisfies the conditions a'), b'), c') of Definition 1.3. Namely, from (3.9) for $h_s \le h_0$ (s = 1, 2, ..., p), we have

$$M_{jk}(\vec{v},\theta) \leq 0, \quad j \neq k,$$

$$\sum_{k=1}^{N} M_{jk}(\vec{v}, \theta) \ge 0, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., N.$$

Furthermore

$$\sum_{k=1}^{N} M_{jk}(\vec{v},\theta) > 0, \quad j \in J(M),$$

and the non-empty set

$$J(M) = \{ m(i) \in (1, 2, ..., N) : C(ih) > 0 \text{ for } ih \in \partial \Omega_h \text{ or } \frac{\partial G}{\partial q} (ih, q, r, s) < 0 \}$$

$$\text{for } (ih, q, r, s) \in \Omega_h \times R^{2p+1} \}.$$

A sequence of the form

$$M_{k,k_1},\,M_{k_1,k_1\mp\,1},\,M_{k_1\mp\,k_1\mp\,2},\,...,\,M_{J-1,J}$$

satisfies condition c') of Definition 1.3. Thus, the matrix $M(\vec{v}, \theta)$ is of positive type.

From Theorem 2.2 in [1] it follows that the matrix $M(v, \theta)$ is monotone for $h_s \leq h_0$ (s = 1, 2, ..., N),

$$\vec{v} \in \mathbb{R}^N$$
, $\theta = (\theta_1, \theta_2, ..., \theta_N)$ $(0 < \theta_i < 1, j = 1, 2, ..., N)$.

Now, we can formulate a difference analogue of the theorem given in [3] p. 165.

THEOREM 3.2. If B(x) = 0, C(x) = 1, $\psi(x) \ge 0$ (or $\psi(x) \le 0$) for $x \in \partial \Omega_h$ and if $\varphi(x) \ge 0$ (or $\varphi(x) \le 0$) for $x \in \Omega_h$, then a solution v of the finite difference scheme (3.3), (3.4), (3.5) is non-positive (or non-negative) in $\overline{\Omega}_n$.

Proof. If v is a solution of (3.3), (3.4), (3.5), then from (3.6) we have

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta)\vec{v} = \vec{b}$$
 for certain $\theta = (\theta_1, \theta_2, ..., \theta_N)$.

Since the matrix $M(\vec{v}, \theta)$ is monotone, we have $\vec{v} \ge 0$ if $\vec{b} \ge 0$. From the assumption and (3.7) if follows that $\vec{b} \ge 0$ (or $\vec{b} \le 0$) and this ends the proof.

Let T(M) be a non-empty subset of the set J(M) and let S be a subspace of R^N spanned by vectors $e_j = (\delta_{1j}, \delta_{2j}, ..., \delta_{Nj}), j \in T(M)$.

A MAXIMUM PRINCIPLE. Every solution \vec{v} of the system equations $f(\vec{v}) = P_s \vec{b}$ satisfies the inequality

$$|\vec{v}|_{\infty} \leq |D^1 P_S \vec{b}|_{\infty}$$
 for any $\vec{b} \in R^N$,

where $D^1 = diagonal (D_1^1, D_2^1, ..., D_N^1),$

$$D_{m(i)}^{1} = \begin{cases} \left(\frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial q}\right)^{-1} & for & m(i) \in T(M), ih \in \Omega_{h}, \\ \left(C(ih)\right)^{-1} & for & m(i) \in T(M), ih \in \partial\Omega_{h}, \\ 1 & for & m(i) \notin T(M). \end{cases}$$

Proof. The vector \vec{v} satisfies the following system of equations:

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta)\vec{v} = P_S\vec{b}$$
 and $D^1 M(\vec{v}, \theta)\vec{v} = D^1 P_S\vec{b}$.

From Theorem 3.1 it follows that

$$D^1 M(\vec{v}, \theta) - D^2 \in \mathfrak{N}_s \cap \mathfrak{M}_s$$

where $D^2 = \text{diagonal } (D_1^2, D_1^2, ..., D_N^2),$

$$D_{m(i)}^2 = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } m(i) \notin J(M), ih \in \overline{\Omega}_h, \\ \\ -\frac{\partial G^i}{\partial q} & \text{for } m(i) \in J(M) - T(M), ih \in \Omega_h, \\ C(ih) & \text{for } m(i) \in J(M) - T(M), ih \in \partial \Omega_h. \end{cases}$$

Since

$$D^1 M(\vec{v}, \theta) - D^2 \leq D^1 M(\vec{v}, \theta)$$

and

$$(D^1 M(\vec{v}, \theta))^{-1} \leq (D^1 M(\vec{v}, \theta) - D^2)^{-1},$$

from Corollary 1.2, we have

$$|\vec{v}|_{\star} \leq |D^1 P_{\bullet} \vec{b}|_{\star}$$

Thus the theorem is proved.

Now, let us assume that

$$B(x) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for } x \in \partial \Omega - \Sigma, \\ 0 & \text{for } x \in \Sigma, \end{cases}$$

$$C(x) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } x \in \partial \Omega - \Sigma, \\ 1 & \text{for } x \in \Sigma, \end{cases}$$

where $\Sigma \subset \partial\Omega$ and $\varphi(x) = 0$, $x \in \Omega$; $\psi(x) = 0$, $x \in \partial\Omega - \Sigma$; $T(M) = \{m(i): ih \in \Sigma\}$. This maximum principle implies the following corollary.

COROLLARY 3.1. Let the above assumptions hold. Every solution v of the difference scheme (3.3), (3.4), (3.5) attains its extremum on that part of the boundary $\partial \Omega_h$ on which Dirichlet's condition is given. Then v satisfies the inequality

$$\max_{ih\in\tilde{\Omega}_h}|v(ih)| \leq \max_{ih\in\mathcal{E}_h}|\psi(ih)|,$$

where $\Sigma_h \subset \Sigma$.

An extension of the maximum principle. Let B(x) = 0, C(x) = 1 for $x \in \partial \Omega$. Then every solution u of the finite difference scheme (3.3), (3.4), (3.5) satisfies the following inequality:

(3.10)
$$\max_{Q_1} |v(ih)| \leq \max_{\partial Q_2} |\psi(ih)| + \exp(\gamma) \max_{Q_1} |\varphi(ih)|$$

for
$$\gamma = \min_{1 \le i \le n} (L_i + \sqrt{L_i^2 + 2\mu_i})/\mu_i, h_s \le h_0 \ (s = 1, 2, ..., p).$$

Proof. The vector \vec{v} satisfies the system of equations

$$f(\vec{v}) = \vec{b}$$
,

where the vector \vec{b} and $f(\vec{v})$ are given by (3.7) and (3.8). Let $\vec{\alpha} = (\alpha_1, \alpha_2, ..., \alpha_N)^T$, $\alpha_j = \exp(\gamma) - (1 + \gamma h_1)^j$, $j = 1, 2, ..., N_1$; $\alpha_j = \alpha_{j-N_1}$, $j = (N_1 + 1)$, $(N_1 + 2)$, ..., N, and let S be a subspace of R^N spanned by the vector $e_j = (\delta_{j1}, \delta_{j2}, ..., \delta_{jN})$, $j \in J(M) = \{m(i) \in \{1, 2, ..., N\}: ih \in \partial \Omega_h\}$. Now,

we shall show that the mapping $f(\vec{v})$ satisfies the assumptions of Theorem 2.1. Namely, from assumption 2° it follows that

$$e_{j} M(\vec{v}, 0) \vec{\alpha} = M_{j,j-1} \alpha_{j-1} + M_{jj} \alpha_{j} + M_{j,j+1} \alpha_{j+1}$$

$$\geq (\mu_{1} - \frac{1}{2} h_{1} L_{1}) \gamma^{2} - L_{1} \gamma, \quad j \notin S, \ h_{1} \leqslant h_{0},$$

where the matrix $M(\vec{v}, \theta)$ is given by (3.9). Hence, we have

$$M(\vec{v},\theta)\xi \geqslant P_s\xi, \quad \xi = (1,1,...,1)^T$$

and

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta)\vec{\alpha} \ge (E - P_s)\vec{\zeta}$$
 if $(\mu_1 - \frac{1}{2} h_1 L_1)\gamma^2 - L_1 \gamma \ge 1$.

But

$$(\mu_1 - \frac{1}{2}h_1 L_1)\gamma^2 - L_1\gamma \geqslant 1$$
 for $\gamma = (L_1 + \sqrt{L_1^2 + 2\mu_1})/\mu_1$.

Thus, inequality (3.10) is true. Changing the coordinates of R^N , we can obtain inequality (3.10) for $\gamma = \min_i L_i + \sqrt{L_i^2 + 2\mu_i/\mu_i}$, and this ends the proof.

§ 4. A finite difference scheme of higher order accuracy

In this section we consider an elliptic equation (p = 1) of form (3.1). Namely, we deal with the following boundary value problem:

(4.1)
$$G(x, u, u'') = \varphi(x), \quad 0 < x < 1,$$

(4.2)
$$u(0) = a_0, \quad u(1) = a_N.$$

Also, we assume that the functions G(x, q, s) and $\varphi(x)$ satisfy assumptions 1°, 2° in § 3.

We approximate problem (4.1), (4.2) by the following finite difference scheme:

(4.3)
$$v^{i} = a_{i}, \quad i = 0, N,$$
$$G(ih, v^{i}, l_{h}v^{i}) = \varphi^{i}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., N-1,$$

where Nh = 1, $v^{l} = v(ih)$,

$$l_h v^i = \begin{cases} \frac{1}{h^2} (v^{i-1} - 2v^i + v^{i+1}), & i = 1, N-1, \\ \frac{1}{12h^2} (-v^{i-2} + 16v^{i-1} - 30v^i + 16v^{i+1} - v^{i-2}), & i = 2, 3, ..., N-2. \end{cases}$$

It is easy to verify that if $u \in C^6(0, 1)$ then the finite difference scheme (4.3) approximates the boundary value problem (4.1), (4.2) with accuracy $O(h^2)$

at the points h, 1-h and with accuracy $O(h^4)$ at the points 2h, 3h, ..., (N-2)h.

In the linear case, $(G(x, u, u_{xx}) = u''(x) + q(x)u(x))$, J. H. Bramble and B. E. Hubbard (cf. [1]) proved that the finite difference scheme (4.3) is convergent as fast as $O(h^4)$ in spite of $O(h^2)$ approximation at the points h, 1-h. Below, we solve the finite difference scheme (4.3) using an explicit form of an inverse matrix to a coherent matrix.

Let us write the finite difference scheme (4.3) in the form

(4.4)
$$f(\vec{v}) = \vec{b},$$
where $\vec{v} = (v^0, v^1, \dots, v^N)^T$ $f(\vec{v}) = (f^0(\vec{v}), f^1(\vec{v}))$

where $\vec{v} = (v^0, v^1, ..., v^N)^T$, $f(\vec{v}) = (f^0(\vec{v}), f^1(\vec{v}), ..., f^N(\vec{v}))^T$,

$$f^{i}(\vec{v}) = \begin{cases} v^{i}, & i = 0, N, \\ -G(ih, v^{i}, l_{n}v^{i}), & i = 1, 2, ..., N-1, \end{cases}$$

 $\vec{b} = (b^0, b^1, \dots, b^N)^T$

$$b^{i} = \begin{cases} a_{i}, & i = 0, N, \\ -\varphi(ih), & i = 1, 2, ..., N-1, \end{cases}$$

The coherent matrix

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta) = \left(\frac{\partial f^{i}(\vec{v}\theta_{i})}{\partial v^{k}}\right),$$

 $\theta = (\theta_0, \theta_1, ..., \theta_N), 0 < \theta_i < 1, (i = 0, 1, ..., N),$ can be presented in the following form:

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta) = B^{1}(\vec{v}, \theta) A(0) + B^{2}(\vec{v}, \theta),$$

where B^1 = diagonal $(B_0^1, B_1^1, ..., B_N^1)$

$$B_{i}^{1} = \begin{cases} 1, & i = 0, N, \\ \frac{1}{h^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s}, & i = 1, N-1, \\ \frac{1}{12h^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s}, & i = 2, 3, ..., N-2, \end{cases}$$

 $B^{2}(\vec{v}, \theta) = \text{diagonal } (B_{0}^{2}, B_{1}^{2}, ..., B_{N}^{2}),$

$$B_i^2 = \begin{cases} \theta, & i = 0, N, \\ -\frac{\partial G^i}{\partial q}, & i = 1, 2, ..., N, \end{cases}$$

$$G^{i} = G(ih, \theta_{i}v^{i}, \theta_{i}l_{h}v^{i}) \quad (i = 1, 2, ..., N-1),$$

2 — Dissertationes CLXXXIII

$$(4.5) \quad A(a) = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ -1 & 2+a & -1 & 0 & 0 \\ 1 & -16 & 30+a & -16 & 1 \\ 0 & 1 & -16 & 30+a & -16 \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & &$$

 $0 \le a \le 36$.

The inverse matrix $A^{-1}(a)$. The explicit form of $A^{-1}(a) = (Y_k^{(a)}(n))$, where $Y_k^{(a)}(n)$ is the general solution of the following system of difference equations:

$$(4.6) y(n+4) - 16y(n+3) + (30+a)y(n+2) - 16y(n+1) + y(n) = \delta_{nk},$$

$$k, n = 0, 1, ..., N,$$

 δ_{nk} - the Kronecker's symbol.

To find $Y_k^{(a)}(n)$ we compute the roots $\lambda_1(a)$, $\lambda_2(a)$, $\lambda_3(a)$, $\lambda_4(a)$ of the characteristic polynomial

$$W(a) = (\lambda^{2} - (8 + \sqrt{36 - a})\lambda + 1)(\lambda^{2} - (8 - \sqrt{36 - a})\lambda + 1),$$

$$\lambda_{1}(a) = \frac{1}{2}(8 + \sqrt{36 - a} - \sqrt{96 + 16}\sqrt{36 - a} - a),$$

$$\lambda_{2}(a) = \frac{1}{2}(8 + \sqrt{36 - a} + \sqrt{96 + 16}\sqrt{36 - a} - a),$$

$$\lambda_{3}(a) = \frac{1}{2}(8 - \sqrt{36 - a} - \sqrt{96 - 16}\sqrt{36 - a} - a),$$

$$\lambda_{4}(a) = \frac{1}{2}(8 - \sqrt{36 - a} + \sqrt{96 - 16}\sqrt{36 - a} - a).$$

Let us note that $\lambda_1(0) = 7 - 4\sqrt{3}$, $\lambda_2(0) = 7 + 4\sqrt{3}$, $\lambda_3(0) = \lambda_4(0) = 1$. Thus, the function

$$(4.6) Y^{(a)}(n) = \begin{cases} C_1 \lambda_1^n + C_2 \lambda_2^n + C_3 n + C_4 & \text{for} \quad a = 0, \\ C_1 \lambda_1^n + C_2 \lambda_2^n + C_3 \lambda_3^n + C_4 \lambda_4^n & \text{for} \quad 0 < a < 36, \end{cases}$$

is the general solution of the homogeneous equation (4.6). We find the general solution $Y_k^{(a)}(n)$ of (4.6) in the following form:

$$(4.7) Y_k^{(a)}(n) = Y^{(a)}(C_1^k, C_2^k, C_3^k, C_4^k, n) + y_k^{(a)}(n),$$

where $y_k^{(a)}(n)$ is a solution of (4.6) which can be obtained by the method

variation of the constants C_1 , C_2 , C_3 , C_4 . We note that

$$y_{k}^{(\alpha)}(n) = \begin{cases} \sum_{i=0}^{n-1} \frac{\delta_{i+2,k}}{12} \left[t - n + 2 + \frac{1}{8\sqrt{3}} \left(\lambda_{1}^{t+2} \lambda_{2}^{n} - \lambda_{1}^{n} \lambda_{2}^{t+2} \right) \right], & a = 0, \\ \sum_{i=0}^{n-1} \left[\frac{\lambda_{2}^{n} \lambda_{1}^{t+1}}{\left(\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1} \right) \left(\lambda_{3} - \lambda_{2} \right) \left(\lambda_{4} - \lambda_{2} \right)} - \frac{\lambda_{1}^{n} \lambda_{1}^{t+1}}{\left(\lambda_{2} - \lambda_{1} \right) \left(\lambda_{3} - \lambda_{1} \right) \left(\lambda_{4} - \lambda_{1} \right)} + \frac{\lambda_{4}^{n} \lambda_{3}^{t+1}}{\left(\lambda_{4} - \lambda_{1} \right) \left(\lambda_{4} - \lambda_{2} \right) \left(\lambda_{4} - \lambda_{3} \right)} - \frac{\lambda_{3}^{n} \lambda_{4}^{t+1}}{\left(\lambda_{3} - \lambda_{1} \right) \left(\lambda_{3} - \lambda_{2} \right) \left(\lambda_{4} - \lambda_{3} \right)} \right] \delta_{t+2,k}, \\ 0 < a < 36. \end{cases}$$

for k, n = 0, 1, 2, ..., N. Thus, we have

$$(4.8) Y_k^{(a)}(n) = Y^{(a)}(n, C_1^k, C_2^k, C_3^k, C_4^k) + y_k^{(a)}(n), k, n = 0, 1, ..., N.$$

The constants C_1^k , C_2^k , C_3^k , C_4^k , k = 0, 1, ..., N are found from the conditions:

$$(4.9) Y_k^{(a)}(0) = \delta_{0k},$$

$$-Y_k^{(a)}(0) + (2+a) Y_k^{(a)}(1) - Y_k^{(a)}(2) = \delta_{1k},$$

$$-Y_k^{(a)}(N-2) + (2+a) Y_k^{(a)}(N-1) - Y_k^{(a)}(N) = \delta_{N-1,k},$$

$$Y_k^{(a)}(N) = \delta_{Nk},$$

Hence, for a = 0

$$C_{1}^{k} = -\frac{\delta_{1k}}{(\lambda_{1}-1)^{2}} + \frac{\delta_{N-1,k}-\delta_{1k}}{\lambda_{2}^{N-2}-\lambda_{1}^{N-2}},$$

$$C_{2}^{k} = \frac{\delta_{1k}-\delta_{N-1,k}}{(\lambda_{2}^{N-2}-\lambda_{1}^{N-2})(\lambda_{2}-1)^{2}},$$

$$C_{3}^{k} = \frac{1}{N} (\delta_{Nk}+C_{1}^{k}+C_{2}^{k}-\delta_{0k}-\lambda_{1}^{N}C_{1}^{k}-\lambda_{2}^{N}C_{2}^{k}),$$

$$C_{4}^{k} = \delta_{0k}-C_{1}^{k}-C_{2}^{k},$$

and for 0 < a < 36,

$$C_1^k = \frac{D_1^k}{D}, \quad C_2^k = \frac{D_2^k}{D},$$
 $C_3^k = \frac{D_3^k}{D}, \quad C_4^k = \frac{D_4^k}{D},$

where $\Lambda_i^1 = (2+a)\lambda_i - \lambda_i^2 - 1$, $\Lambda_i^2 = (2+a)\lambda_i^{N-1} - \lambda_i^N - \lambda_i^{N-2}$,

$$D = \begin{vmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ \Lambda_{1}^{1} & \Lambda_{2}^{1} & \Lambda_{3}^{1} & \Lambda_{4}^{1} \\ \Lambda_{1}^{2} & \Lambda_{2}^{2} & \Lambda_{3}^{2} & \Lambda_{4}^{2} \\ \lambda_{1}^{N} & \lambda_{2}^{N} & \lambda_{3}^{N} & \lambda_{4}^{N} \end{vmatrix},$$

$$D_{1}^{k} = \begin{vmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ \delta_{1k} & \Lambda_{2}^{1} & \Lambda_{3}^{1} & \Lambda_{4}^{1} \\ \delta_{N-1,k} + \psi_{k}^{(a)}(N) & \Lambda_{2}^{2} & \Lambda_{3}^{2} & \Lambda_{4}^{2} \\ \delta_{Nk} + \chi_{k}^{(a)}(N) & \lambda_{2}^{N} & \lambda_{3}^{N} & \lambda_{4}^{N} \end{vmatrix},$$

$$D_{2}^{k} = \begin{vmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ \Lambda_{1}^{1} & \delta_{1k} & \Lambda_{3}^{1} & \Lambda_{4}^{1} \\ \Lambda_{1}^{2} & \delta_{N-1,k} + \psi_{k}^{(a)}(N) & \Lambda_{3}^{2} & \Lambda_{4}^{2} \\ \lambda_{1}^{N} & \delta_{Nk} + \chi_{k}^{(a)}(N) & \lambda_{3}^{N} & \lambda_{4}^{N} \end{vmatrix},$$

$$D_{3}^{k} = \begin{vmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ \Lambda_{1}^{1} & \Lambda_{2}^{1} & \delta_{1k} & \Lambda_{4}^{1} \\ \Lambda_{1}^{2} & \Lambda_{2}^{2} & \delta_{N-1,k} + \psi_{k}^{(a)}(N) & \Lambda_{4}^{2} \\ \lambda_{1}^{N} & \lambda_{2}^{N} & \delta_{Nk} + \chi_{k}^{(a)}(N) & \Lambda_{4}^{N} \end{vmatrix},$$

$$D_{k}^{4} = \begin{vmatrix} 1 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ \Lambda_{1}^{1} & \Lambda_{2}^{1} & \Lambda_{3}^{1} & \delta_{1k} & \Lambda_{4}^{1} \\ \Lambda_{2}^{1} & \Lambda_{2}^{2} & \Lambda_{3}^{2} & \delta_{N-1,k} + \psi_{k}^{(a)}(N) \\ \lambda_{1}^{N} & \lambda_{2}^{N} & \lambda_{3}^{N} & \delta_{Nk} + \chi_{k}^{(a)}(N) \\ \lambda_{1}^{N} & \lambda_{2}^{N} & \lambda_{3}^{N} & \delta_{Nk} + \chi_{k}^{(a)}(N) \end{vmatrix},$$

$$\psi_{k}^{(a)}(N) = y_{k}^{(a)}(N-2) - (2+a) y_{k}^{(a)}(N-1) + y^{(a)}(N),$$

$$\gamma_{k}^{(a)}(N) = -y_{k}^{(a)}(N), \quad k = 0, 1, ..., N.$$

Thus, we have

(4.10)
$$A^{-1}(a) = (Y_k^{(a)}(n)), \quad k, n = 0, 1, ..., N.$$

The matrix A(0) is monotone and normalized with respect to the subspace S of R^N spanned by the vectors $e_0 = (1, 0, ..., 0), e_{N+1} = (0, 0, ..., 1)$. Furthermore (cf. [1])

$$0 \le e_i A^{-1}(0) B^{-1} e_k^T \le 3h^2, \quad k = 1, N-1, i = 0, 1, ..., N,$$

where
$$B = \text{diagonal}\left(1, \frac{1}{h^2}, \frac{1}{12h^2}, ..., \frac{1}{12h^2}, \frac{1}{h^2}, 1\right)$$
.

Thus $BA(0) \in \mathfrak{R}_S \cap \mathfrak{M}_S$. On the other hand, from the assumptions 1^0 , 2^0 if follows that

$$M(\vec{v}, \theta) = B^{1}(\vec{v}, \theta) A(a) + B^{2}(\vec{v}, \theta) \ge \mu(q, s) BA(0).$$

Hence, we have

$$M^{-1}(\vec{v}, \theta) \leqslant \frac{1}{\mu} A^{-1}(0) B^{-1}$$

and from Corollary 1.2 we have $\mathfrak{M}M \in \mathfrak{M}_S$ and

$$e_i M^{-1}(\vec{v}, \theta) e_k^T \leq \frac{3}{\mu} h^2, \quad k = 1, N-1, i = 0, 1, ..., N.$$

A bound error. Let $u \in C^{(6)}(0,1) \cap C^0[0,1]$ be a solution of (4.1), (4.2) and let v be a solution of the finite difference scheme (4.3), (4.4). Then, we have

$$f(\vec{v}) = \vec{b}$$
 and $f(\vec{ru}) = \vec{b} + \vec{v}u$,

where $\vec{ru} = (u(0), u(h), ..., u(1))^T$, $v = (v_0, v_1, ..., v_N)^T$,

$$v_{i}(u) = \begin{cases} 0, & i = 0, N, \\ -G(ih, u(ih), u''(ih)) + O_{i}(h^{2}), & i = 1, N-1, \\ -G(ih, u(ih), u''(ih)) + O_{i}(h^{4}), & i = 2, 3, ..., N-2, \end{cases}$$

 $O_i(h^a) \to 0$ as fast as $h^a \to 0$, $\alpha > 0$, i = 1, 2, ..., N-1. But for certain $\theta = (\theta_0, \theta_1, ..., \theta_N)$, $0 < \theta_i < 1$ (i = 0, 1, ..., N)

$$f(\vec{r}, \vec{u}) - f(\vec{v}) = M(\vec{z}, \theta) \vec{z},$$

where
$$\vec{z} = \overrightarrow{r_h u} - \vec{v}$$
, $M(\vec{z}, \theta) = B^1(\vec{z}, \theta) A(0) + B^2(\vec{z}, \theta)$. Hence $M(\vec{z}, \theta) \vec{z} = \vec{O}(u)$, $\vec{O} = (O, O_1, O_2, ..., O_{N-1}, O)^T$

and

$$\vec{z} = M^{-1}(\vec{z}, \theta) \vec{O}(u).$$

Since

$$\|M^{-1}(\vec{z},\theta)\|_{\infty} \leqslant \frac{1}{\mu}$$
 and $0 \leqslant M_{ik}^{-1}(\vec{z},\theta) \leqslant \frac{3}{\mu}h^2$,

k = 1, N-1; i = 0, 1, ..., N, we have

$$z_{i} = M_{i1}^{-1} O_{1}(h^{2}) + M_{iN-1}^{-1} O_{N-i1}(h^{2}) + \sum_{k=2}^{N-2} M_{ik}^{-1} O_{i}(h^{4})$$

and there exists a constant $K_0 > 0$ such that

$$|\vec{z}|_{\infty} \leqslant \frac{K_0}{\mu} h^4 = Ch^4,$$

where C is a constant.

EXAMPLE. Let us consider the following boundary value problem:

(4.12)
$$\left(\frac{d^2 u}{dx^2}\right)^3 + p_1(x) \left(\frac{d^2 u}{dx^2}\right)^2 + p_2(x) \frac{d^2 u}{dx^2} - au = \varphi(x),$$

$$0 < x < 1, \ a \ge 0.$$

$$(4.13) u(0) = a_0, u(1) = a_N.$$

An approximated solution v of (4.12), (4.13) is found from (4.4;. In this case we have $G(x, q, s) = s^3 + p_1(x)s^2 + p_2(x)s - aq$. For a = 0, system (4.4) is solved by Newton's method

$$\vec{v}^{(m+1)} = \vec{v}^{(m)} - A^{-1}(0) B^{-f}(\vec{v}^{(m)}) f(\vec{v}^{(m)}),$$

where $B^f(\vec{v}) = \text{diagonal } (B_0^f, B_1^f, ..., B_N^f),$

$$B_{i}^{f} = \begin{cases} 1, & i = 0, N, \\ \frac{1}{h^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s}, & i = 1, N-1, \\ \frac{1}{12h^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s}, & i = 2, 3, ..., N-2. \end{cases}$$

Below, we present the results of the computations.

Table 1 $p_1(x) = p_2(x) = 1$, $\varphi(x) = -\sin^3 x + \sin^2 x - \sin x$, a = 0, $v^{(0)} = 0$.

х	$u = \sin x$	_Ū (m)	$r_h u - \vec{v}^{(m)}$	m
0.0	0.000000	0.000000	0.000000	0
0.1	0.099835	0.099833	0.000002	5
0.2	0.198672	0.198669	0.000003	5
0.2	0.295523	0.295520	0.000003	5
0.4	0.389422	0.389418	0.000004	5
0.5	0.479430	0.479426	0.000004	5
0.6	0.565647	0.564642	0.000005	5
0.7	0.644223	0.644218	0.000005	5
0.8	0.717362	0.717356	0.000006	5
0.9	0.783333	0.783327	0.000006	5
1.0	0.841471	0.841471	0.000000	0

The error $\vec{z} = \overrightarrow{r_h u} - \vec{v} \approx Ch^4$, h = 0.1, C = 0.1.

Table 2 $p_1(x) = \exp(x), p_2(x) = \exp(2x), \varphi(x) = 3 \exp(3x), a = 0, \vec{v}^{(0)} = 0.$

х	$u = \exp(x)$	<i>v</i> ̄ ^(m)	$\overrightarrow{r_h} u - \overrightarrow{v}^{(m)}$	nı
0.0	1.00000	1.00000	0.00000	0
0.1	1.10517	1.10518	0.00001	6
0.2	1.22140	1,22142	0.00002	6
0.3	1.34986	1.34987	0.00001	6
0.4	1.49182	1.49184	0.00002	6
0.5	1.64872	1.64874	0.00002	6
0.6	1.82212	1.82214	0.00002	6
0.7	2.01375	2.01377	0.00002	6
0.8	2.22554	2.22556	0.00002	6
0.9	2.45960	2.45962	0,00002	6
1.0	2.71828	2.71828	0.00000	0

The error $\vec{z} = \overrightarrow{r_h u} - \vec{v} \approx Ch^4$, h = 0.1, C = 1.

Table 3

 $p_1(x) = 16 \exp(4x), \quad p_2(x) = 256 \exp(8x), \quad \varphi(x) = 49152 \exp(12x), \quad a = 0, \quad \vec{v}^{(0)} = 0.$

х	$u = \exp(4x)$	<u></u> <u><u></u> <u></u> </u>	$\vec{r}_h u - \vec{v}^{(m)}$	m
0.0	1.00000	1.00000	0.00000	0
0.1	1.49182	1.50287	0.01105	10
0.2	2.22554	2.24444	0.01889	10
0,3	3.32012	3.34673	0.02661	10
0.4	4.95303	4.98750	0.03447	10
0.5	7.38906	7.43161	0.04255	10
0.6	11.02320	11.07420	0.05100	10
0.7	16.44460	16.50455	0.05995	10
0.8	24.53250	24.60170	0.07920	10
0.9	36.59820	36.59820	0.07390	10
1.0	54.59820	54.59820	0.00000	0

The error $\vec{z} = \overrightarrow{r_h u} - \vec{v} \approx Ch^4$, h = 0.1, C = 500.

§ 5. A maximum principle for systems of ordinary differential equations

Let us consider the following initial value problem (cf. [8]):

(5.1)
$$Pv = D(t, v) \frac{dv}{dt} - A(t, v)v = b(t), \quad 0 < t \le T,$$

$$(5.2) v(0) = c,$$

where $v = (v^1, v^2, ..., v^N)^T$, $b = (b^1, b^2, ..., b^N)^T$, $c = (c^1, c^2, ..., c^N)^T$, $D = \text{diagonal } (D^1, D^2, ..., D^N)$, $A = (A_{ij})$, i, j = 1, 2, ..., N.

We assume that the entries of the given matrices A(t, v), D(t, v) and the vector b(t) are real functions in $[0, T] \times R^N$ and [0, T], respectively. Furthermore, we assume that problem (1), (2) has a continuous solution v(t) in [0, T].

DEFINITION 5.1. An operator P of form (5.1) satisfies the maximum principle with respect to a subspace S of the space R^N (in symbols $P \in \mathfrak{M}_S$) if and only if for any b, c every continuous solution v(t) of the problem

(5.3)
$$D(t, v) \frac{dv}{dt} = A(t, v) v + P_S b(t), \quad 0 < t \leq T,$$

$$(5.4) v(0) = c,$$

satisfies the following inequality:

$$||v|| \leq \max\{|c|_{\infty}, ||P_S b||, ||P_S v||\},$$

where $|c|_{\infty} = \max_{i} |c^{i}|$, $||v|| = \max_{i} \max_{0 \le t \le T} |v^{i}(t)|$.

An application of this principle to an approximation of parabolic equations by the method of lines is presented in [9].

THEOREM 5.1. Let $v \in C^0[0, T] \cap C^1(0, T]$ be a solution of (5.3), (5.4). If the following conditions are satisfied:

1° the matrix A(t, v) is of positive type for $(t, v) \in \Omega = [0, T] \times \mathbb{R}^N$,

2°
$$\sum_{k} A_{jk}(t, v) = 1$$
 for $k \in I_S = \{i: e_i \in S\}, (t, v) \in \Omega$,

$$3^{\circ} D^{k}(t, v) \leq 0 \text{ for } k \notin I_{S}, (t, v) \in \Omega,$$

then

$$||v|| \le \max \{|c|_{\infty}, ||P_S b||; ||P_S v(T)|_{\infty}\}.$$

Proof. Let $t_1, t_2, ..., t_N$ be points of the interval [0, T] satisfying the relations

$$v^{l}(t_{i}) = \max_{0 \leq t \leq T} v^{l}(t)$$

and let

$$v^{p}(t_{p}) = \max_{1 \leq l \leq N} v^{i}(t_{l}).$$

Now we show that

(5.6)
$$v^{p}(t_{p}) \leq \max \{|c|_{\infty}, \|P_{S}b\|, |P_{S}v(T)|_{\infty}\}.$$

If $t_p = 0$ or $v^p(t_p) \le 0$, then inequality (5.6) is satisfied. Thus, let $0 < t_p \le T$ and $v^p(t_p) > 0$. From assumption 1° and the definition of the point t_p it

follows that

$$(5.7) \quad v^{p}(t_{p}) \sum_{j=1}^{N} A_{pj}(t_{p}, v(t_{p})) \leq \sum_{j=1}^{N} A_{pj}(t_{p}, v(t_{p})) v^{j}(t_{p})$$

$$= \begin{cases} D^{p}(t_{p}, v(t_{p})) \frac{dv^{p}(t_{p})}{dt} & \text{for } p \notin I_{S}, \\ -b^{p}(t_{p}) + D^{p}(t_{p}, v(t_{p})) \frac{dv^{p}(t_{p})}{dt} & \text{for } p \in I_{S}, \end{cases}$$

$$\leq \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } p \notin I_{S}, \\ -b^{p}(t_{p}) & \text{for } p \in I_{S}, t_{p} < T. \end{cases}$$

Hence we have inequality (5.6) or $p \notin I_S$ and $p \notin J(A(tp, v(tp)))$. However, for $p \notin J(A(t_p, v(t_p)))$ there exists $j \in J(A(t_p, v(t_p)))$, (from the assumption 1°) and a sequence of non-zero elements of A of the form

$$A_{pk_1}(t_p, v(t_p)), A_{k_1k_2}(t_p, v(t_p)), \ldots, A_{k_pj}(t_p, v(t_p)).$$

Also, for $p \in I_S$ from (5.7) if follows that $v^p(t_p) = v^{k_1}(t_{k_1})$ and we can take $t_{k_1} = t_p$. In this way we obtain

$$(5.8) v^p(t_p) = v^{k_1}(t_p) = v^{k_2}(t_p) = v^{k_r}(t_p) = v^{j}(t_p).$$

Thus, from the assumption 20 and inequality (5.7) it follows that

$$v^{p}(t_{p}) \leq \max \{|c|_{\infty}, \|P_{S}b\|, |P_{S}v(T)|_{\infty}\}.$$

Since the function w(t) = -v(t) satisfies the following Cauchy problem:

$$D(t, -w)\frac{dw}{dt} = A(t, -w)w + P_s(-b(t)),$$

$$w(0) = -c,$$

therefore by (5.7) we find

$$-v^r(t_r) = \min \min v^i(t) = \max \max w^i(t) \leq \max \{|c|_{\infty}, \|P_S b\|, (P_S v(T))\}$$

and this ends the proof.

An estimation of a solution v in space R^N by all components of the vectors \vec{b} , \vec{c} will be called an extension of the maximum principle. This principle we formulate as follows:

DEFINITION 5.2. An operator P of form (5.1) satisfies a maximum principle as an a priori estimation with respect to a subspace S of the space R^N and with respect to a constant K (in symbols $P \in \mathfrak{M}_S(K)$) if and only if

for any b, c every continuous solution v(t) of (5.1), (5.2) satisfies the following inequality:

(5.9) $||v|| \le \max \{|P_S c|_{\infty}, ||P_S v||, ||P_S b||\} + K \max \{|(E - P_S) c|_{\infty}, ||(E - P_S) b||\},$ where E is the unit matrix.

THEOREM 5.2. Let $v \in C^1(0, T] \wedge C^0[0, T]$ be a solution of (5.1), (5.2) and let

$$B(t_1, t_2, \ldots, t_N) = (A_{ij}(t_i, v(t_i)))$$

for any $t_1, t_2, ..., t_N \in [0, T]$. If the matrix $B(t_1, t_2, ..., t_N)$ is monotone (cf. [18]) for any $t_1, t_2, ..., t_N$ and if the following conditions hold:

$$B(t_1, t_2, ..., t_N)\xi \geqslant P_S \xi, \ \xi = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T,$$

 $2^{\circ\circ}$ there exists a vector $\alpha \in \mathbb{R}^N$ such that

$$B(t_1, t_2, ..., t_N) \alpha \geqslant (E - P_S) \xi$$
,

$$3^{no} D^{i}(t, v) \leq 0, i = 1, 2, ..., N,$$

$$4^{\infty} |A(0,c)c|_{\infty} \leq |c|_{\infty}$$

then

$$||v|| \leq \max \{|P_S A(0, c) c|_{\infty}, ||P_S b||\} + ||\alpha|| \max \{|(E - P_S) A(0, c) c|_{\infty}, ||(E - P_S) b||\}$$

and by condition $4^{\circ\circ}$ we have $P \in \mathfrak{M}_S(\|\alpha\|)$.

Proof. Let $g = F_1 \xi + F_2 \alpha$, where $F_1 = \max \{ |P_S A(0, c) c|_{\infty}, \|P_S b\| \}$, $F_2 = \max \{ |(E - P_S) A(0, c) c|_{\infty}, \|(E - P_S) b\| \}$. From equation (5.1) it follows that

(5.10)
$$A(g \mp v) = Ag \mp D \frac{dv}{dt} \pm b = F_1 A\xi + F_2 A\alpha \pm D \frac{dv}{dt} \pm b.$$

Let $t_1^{\dagger}, t_2^{\dagger}, ..., t_N^{\dagger}$ be points of the interval [0, T] satisfying the following relations:

$$v^l(t_i^+) = \max_t v^l(t),$$

$$v^i(t_i^-) = \min v^i(t),$$

and let $w^{\pm} = (v^{1}(t_{1}^{\pm}), v^{2}(t_{2}^{\pm}), ..., v^{N}(t_{N}^{\pm})).$ If $(t_{i}^{\pm}) \in (0, T]$, then from (5.10) we have

$$e_i B^{\mp} (g \mp w^{\mp}) \geqslant F_1 e_i P_S \xi + F_2 e_i (E - P_S) \xi \mp D^i \frac{dv^i(t_i^{\mp})}{dt} \pm b^i(t_i^{\mp}) \geqslant 0.$$

If $t_i^{\pm} = 0$, then from 1^{∞} and 2^{∞} we have

$$e_i B^{\bar{+}} (g \mp w^{\bar{+}}) \geqslant F_1 e_1 P_S \xi + F_2 e_i (E - P_S) \xi \mp e_i A(0, c) c \geqslant 0.$$

Since the matrix B is monotone, we have

$$g^i \mp v^i(t_i^{\dagger}) \ge 0, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., N.$$

Hence we have $||v|| \le ||g||$. On the other hand, $||g|| \le F_1 + ||\alpha|| F_2$. Thus we obtain the following estimation:

$$||v|| \leq \max \{|P_S A(0, c) c|_{\infty}, ||P_S b||\} + ||\alpha|| \max \{|(E - P_S) A(0, c) c|_{\infty}, ||(E - P_S) b||\}$$

and this ends the proof.

§ 6. The method of lines for nonlinear parabolic equations which can be degenerated to elliptic equations

Using the maximum principle for systems of ordinary differential equations, we prove the convergence of the method of lines for nonlinear parabolic equations which can be degenerated to elliptic equations.

Let us consider the following Fourier problem, (cf. [9]):

(6.1)
$$k(t,x)\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = G(t,x,u,u_x,u_{xx}), \quad x \in D^p, \ 0 < t \leqslant T,$$

(6.2)
$$u(0, x) = \psi(x), x \in D^p$$

(6.3)
$$u(t, x) = 0, \qquad x \in \partial D^p, \ 0 \leqslant t \leqslant T,$$

where $D^p = \{x = (x_1, x_2, ..., x_p): 0 < x_i < 1, i = 1, 2, ..., p\}, \partial D^p$ — the boundary of D^p , u = u(t, x), $u_x = (u_{x_1}, u_{x_2}, ..., u_{x_p})$, $u_{xx} = (u_{x_1x_1}, u_{x_2x_2}, ..., u_{x_px_p})$.

Assumptions. 1° The function G(t, x, q, r, s), $r = (r_1, r_2, ..., r_p)$, $s = (s_1, s_2, ..., s_p)$ is defined in $[0, T] \times D^p \times R^{2p+1}$ and continuously defferentiable with respect to variables $q, r_1, ..., r_p, s_1, ..., s_p$,

$$\frac{\partial G(t, x, q, r, s)}{\partial q} \le 0 \quad \text{for} \quad (t, x, q, r, s) \in [0, T] \times D^p \times R^{2p+1}$$

The functions $k(t, x) \ge 0$, $\psi(x)$ are given in $[0, T] \times D^p$ and D^p , respectively. 2^{00} There exist functions $\mu_i(q, r, s) > 0$, $L_i(q, r, s)$ and constants $K_i > 0$ (i = 1, 2, ..., p) such that

$$\frac{\partial G(t,x,q,r,s)}{\partial s_i} \geqslant \mu_i(q,r,s),$$

$$\left|\frac{\partial G(t,x,q,r,s)}{\partial r_t}\right| \leqslant L_t(q,r,s),$$

$$L_i(q,r,s) \leqslant K_i \mu_i(q,r,s),$$

for
$$(t, x, q, r, s) \in [0, T] \times D^p \times R^{2p+1}$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$.

An approximation of the Fourier problem. We approximate the (6.1), (6.2), (6.3) by the following system of ordinary equations:

$$-\frac{dv^{m(i)}}{dt} = v^{m(i)}, \quad ih \in \partial \Omega_h, \ 0 < t \leq T,$$

(6.4)
$$k(t, ih) \frac{dv^{m(t)}}{dt} = G(t, ih, v^t, \overline{\Delta}v^t, \Delta \nabla v^t), \quad ih \in \Omega_h, \ 0 < t < T,$$

$$v^{m(i)}(0) = \psi(ih), \quad ih \in \overline{\Omega}_h,$$

where $\vec{v} = (v^1, v^2, ..., v^N)^T$, $v^{m(i)} = v(t, ih)$, the index m(i) follows from the lexicographical ordering of points of the net $\bar{\Omega}_h$ and N is the number of points of $\bar{\Omega}_h$.

Let u(t, x) be a solution of (6.1), (6.2), (6.3) four times continuously differentiable with respect to variables $x_1, x_2, ..., x_p$ and twice continuously differentiable with respect to the variable t and let $\vec{v}(t) = (v^1(t), v^2(t), ..., v^N)^T$ be a continuous solution in [0, T] of (6.4).

THEOREM 6.1. If $h_{max} \leq \min(1/K_i)$, then there exists a constant $K_0 > 0$ such that

$$|u(t, ih) - v^{m(i)}(t)| \leq K_0 \exp(\gamma) h_{\max}^2, \quad ih \in \Omega_h, \ t \in [0, T],$$

where a constant K_0 is independent of h,

$$\gamma = \min_{i} (L_i + \sqrt{\mu_i^2 + 2\mu_i}) \mu_i,$$

$$h_{\max} = \max_{i} h_{i} \leqslant \min_{i} \frac{1}{K_{i}}.$$

Furthermore, if there exists a constant $\mu_0 > 0$ such that $\mu_i(q, r, s) \ge \mu_0$, $(q, r, s) \in \mathbb{R}^{2p+1}$ (i = 1, 2, ..., p), then $v^{m(i)}(t) \to u(t, ih)$ as fast as $h_{\max}^2 \to 0$.

Proof. From the regularity of u(t, x) and G(t, x, q, r, s) it follows that

$$-\frac{du^{m(i)}}{dt} = u^{m(i)}, \quad ih \in \partial\Omega_h, \ t \in (0, T],$$

(6.5)
$$k(t, ih) \frac{du^{m(i)}}{dt} = G(t, ih, u^{m(i)}, \overline{\Delta}u^{m(i)}, \Delta \nabla u^{m(i)}) + w^{m(i)}(h),$$
$$ih \in \Omega_h, \ t \in (0, T],$$

$$u^{m(i)}(0)=0.$$

where $u^{m(i)} = u(t, ih)$, $\vec{w}(h) = (w^1(h), w^2(h), ..., w^N(h))^T \to 0$ as fast as $h_{\text{max}}^2 \to 0$, $N = (N_1 + 1)(N_2 + 1), ..., (N_p + 1)$.

From (6.4) and (6.5) it follows that

$$\frac{-d(u^{m(l)}-v^{m(l)})}{dt}=u^{m(l)}-v^{m(l)}, \quad ih \in \partial \Omega_h, \ t \in (0, T],$$

(6.6)
$$k(t, ih) \frac{d(u^{m(i)} - v^{m(i)})}{dt} = G(t, ih, u^{m(i)}, \overline{\Delta}u^{m(i)}, \Delta \nabla u^{m(i)}) - G(t, ih, v^{m(i)}, \overline{\Delta}v^{m(i)}, \Delta \nabla v^{m(i)}) + w^{m(i)}(h),$$

$$ih \in \Omega_h, \ t \in (0, T],$$

$$u^{m(i)}(0)-v^{m(i)}(0)=0, \quad ih\in\bar{\Omega}_h.$$

Substituting in (6.6)

$$\begin{split} G(t, ih, u^{m(i)}, \bar{\Delta}u^{m(i)}, \Delta \nabla u^{m(i)}) - G(t, ih, v^{m(i)}, \bar{\Delta}v^{m(i)}, \Delta \nabla v^{m(i)}) \\ &= \sum_{m(i)} \frac{\partial G}{\partial u^{m(i)}} (u^{m(i)} - v^{m(i)}), \quad ih \in \Omega_h, t \in (0, T], \end{split}$$

we can write system (6.6) in the following form:

$$D\frac{d\vec{z}}{dt} = A(t, \vec{z})\vec{z} + \vec{w}(h), \quad t \in (0, T],$$

$$\vec{z}(0)=0,$$

where $\vec{z}(t) = (z^1(t), z^2(t), ..., z^N(t))^T$, $z^{m(l)}(t) = u^{m(l)}(t) - v^{m(l)}(t)$, $D = \text{diagonal}(D_1, D_2, ..., D_N)$,

$$D_{m(t)}(t) = \begin{cases} -1 & \text{for } ih \in \partial \Omega_h, \ t \in [0, T], \\ -k(t, ih) & \text{for } ih \in \Omega_h, \ t \in [0, T], \end{cases}$$

a matrix $A(t, \vec{z}) = (A_{jk}(t, \vec{z})),$

$$A_{m(l)k} = \begin{cases} 2 \sum_{l=1}^{p} \frac{1}{h_{l}^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s_{l}} - \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial q}, & k = m(i), ih \in \Omega_{h}, \\ -\frac{1}{h_{l}^{2}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial s_{l}} + \frac{1}{2h_{l}} \frac{\partial G^{i}}{\partial r_{l}}, & k = m(i) + (N_{1} + 1) \dots (N_{l} + 1), \\ 1, & k = m(i), ih \in \partial \Omega_{h}, \end{cases}$$

the remaining elements of A are equal to zero.

Let us observe that the matrix A is of positive type and satisfies the assumptions of Theorem 5.2 for the vector $\vec{\alpha} = (\alpha_1, \alpha_2 \dots \alpha_N)^T$,

$$\alpha_{j} = \begin{cases} \exp(\gamma) - (1 + \gamma h_{1})^{j}, & j = 1, 2, ..., N_{1}, \\ \alpha_{j-N_{1}}, & j = (N_{1} + 1), (N_{1} + 2), ..., N, \end{cases}$$

(cf. the prove of (3.10)).

Since $\vec{z}(0) = 0$, from Theorem 5.2 it follows that $\|\vec{z}\| \le K_0 \exp(\gamma) h_{\max}^2$.

Hence for $\mu_i(q, r, s) \ge \mu_0$, (i = 1, 2, ..., p), $(q, r, s) \in \mathbb{R}^{2p+1}$ we have $\vec{z}(t) \to 0$ as fast as $h_{\max}^2 \to 0$. Thus the theorem is proved.

§ 7. A geometrical interpretation of a maximum principle for a system of difference equations

1. Let $\Omega \subset E^n$ denote a domain consisting of a finite number of parallepipeds with edges parallel to the hyperplanes $x_s = 0$, s = 1, 2, ..., n. Let us introduce the net $\Omega_h = \{ih = (i_1 h_1, i_2 h_2, ..., i_n h_n) \in \overline{\Omega}\}$, where $i = (i_1, i_2, ..., ..., i_n)$ is a set of integers, $h = (h_1 h_2, ..., h_n)$, $h_s > 0$, s = 1, 2, ..., n, $\overline{\Omega} = \partial \Omega \cup \Omega$. $\partial \Omega$ — denotes the boundary of the domain Ω . We shall call two points jh, kh, $j = (j_1, j_2, ..., j_n)$, $k = (k_1, k_2, ..., k_n)$, adjacent if $\sum_{s=1}^{n} |k_s - j_s| = 1$. Then, an internal point of the net $\overline{\Omega}_h$ may by defined as a point $ih \in \Omega$ whose adjacent points all belong to $\overline{\Omega}$. The set of internal points of the net $\overline{\Omega}_h$ will be denoted by Ω_h . Let $\omega_i = (\omega_i^1, \omega_i^2, ..., \omega_l^p) \in E^p$ be a vector-function defined on the net $\overline{\Omega}_h$ and let $\Omega_h \subset E^p$ denote the set of values of the vector-function ω . Below, we shall consider the difference analogue of the maximum principle in the following sense:

DEFINITION 7.1. We shall say that the vector-function ω satisfies the maximum principle if for every point $\omega_i \in \Omega_h$ – such that there exists a hyperplane l_i supporting the set Ω_h at the point ω_i – the inverse image of ω_i belongs to the boundary $\partial \Omega_h$ of the net $\overline{\Omega}_h$.

DEFINITION 7.2. We shall say that the vector-function ω satisfies the maximum principle if the function $R = (\omega, \omega)^{1/2}$ attains its maximum on the boundary $\partial \Omega_h$ of the net $\bar{\Omega}_h$.

The above definitions are not equivalent since if the function ω satisfies the condition of Definition 7.1 it also satisfies the condition from Definition 7.2 but not conversely, in general.

In paper [7] the maximum principle in the sense of Definition 1 is studied for certain systems of differential equations of form (7.1). In papers [5], [11], [13] and [14] the maximum principle in the sense of Definition 7.2 is also considered for systems of differential equations of form (7.1). In the case $A^s(x) = a^s(x)E$, $(a^s(x) > 0, s = 1, 2, ..., E$ — denotes the unit matrix) in paper [10] the maximum principle in the sense of Definition 7.1 is considered for any system of difference equations of form (7.2).

2. Let us consider the following system of equations:

(7.1)
$$Lu(x) \equiv \sum_{s=1}^{n} A^{s}(x) \frac{\partial^{2} u}{\partial x_{s}^{2}} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} B^{s}(x) \frac{\partial u}{\partial x_{s}} + C(x) u = F(x),$$

where $x = (x_1, x_2, ..., x_n) \in \Omega$, $u = (u_1, u_2, ..., u_p)^T$, $F = (F_1, F_2, ..., F_p)^T$, A^T — denotes the transposed matrix A, A^s, B^s , s = 1, 2, ..., n, and C are matrices of the dimension $p \times p$.

We introduce the following assumptions:

A. We assume that $A^s(x)$, $B^s(x)$, s = 1, 2, ..., n, C(x) and F(x) are bounded in the $\bar{\Omega}$. Furthermore, we assume that the matrix $B^s(x)$ is the product of some function $b^s(x)$ and the unit matrix E.

B. We assume that for any fixed unit vector $a = (a_1, a_2, ..., a_p)$ and an arbitrary vector $\eta = (\eta_1, \eta_2, ..., \eta_p)$ the following inequalities are satisfied:

$$aCu \geqslant 0$$
, $(aA^s\eta)(a\eta) \geqslant K_s(a\eta)^2$,

where the constants $K_s > 0$, s = 1, 2, ..., n are independent of the vector η .

3. Now, we shall deal with the following approximation of system (7.1):

(7.2)
$$L_h v_i \equiv \sum_{s=1}^n A_i^s \Delta_s \nabla_s v_i + \sum_{s=1}^n B_i^s \overline{\Delta}_s v_i + C_i v_i = F_i,$$

where $ih \in \Omega_h$, $v_i = v(ih)$, $\Delta_s v_i = (v_i^{s+1} - v_i)/h_s$, $\nabla_s v_i = (v_i - v_i^{s-1})/h_s$, $\overline{\Delta}_s = (\Delta_s + \nabla_s)/2$, $v_i^{s\mp 1} = v(i_1 h_1, i_2 h_2, ..., (i_s \mp 1) h_s, ..., i_n h_n)$,

Let v_t be a solution of system (2) for F = 0. We shall prove the following.

THEOREM 7.1. If assumptions A and B are satisfied and if for some i^0 there exists a hyperplane l_{i^0} supporting the set Ω_h at v_{i^0} such that at least one of the points $v_{i^0}^{s\mp 1}$, s=1,2,...,n, does not lie on the hyperplane l_{i^0} , then the inverse image of the point v_{i^0} belongs to the boundary $\partial \Omega_h$ of the net $\overline{\Omega}_h$.

Proof. Let us suppose that the inverse image of the point v_{i0} belongs to the net Ω_h . Suppose that the unit vector $a \perp l_{i0}$ has inward direction to Ω_h . Multiplying both sides of the kth equation, k = 1, 2, ..., p, of system (7.2) by the kth component of the vector and taking the sum of all the equations, we obtain the following equation:

(7.3)
$$aL_h v_i \equiv \sum_{s=1}^n aA_i^s \Delta_s \nabla_s v_i + \sum_{s=1}^n aB_i^s \bar{\Delta}_s v_i + aC_i v_i = 0.$$

Let us substitute

$$\Delta_s \nabla_s v_i = (\omega_i^{s+1} + \omega_i^{s-1})/h_s^2, \quad \bar{\Delta}_s v_i = (\omega_i^{s+1} - \omega_i^{s-1})/2h_s,$$

where $\omega_i^{s^{\mp} 1} = v_i^{s^{\mp} 1} - v_i$, in to equation (7.3)

(7.4)
$$aL_h v_i \equiv \sum_{s=1}^n \frac{1}{h_s^2} a A_i^s (\omega_i^{s+1} + \omega_i^{s-1}) + \sum_{s=1}^n \frac{1}{2h_s} a B_i^s,$$
$$(\omega_i^{s+1} - \omega_i^{s-1}) + a C_i v_i = 0.$$

Since $v_{i0} \in l_{i0}$ and at least one of the points $v_{i0}^{s\mp 1}$, s=1,2,...,n, does not lie on the hyperplane l_{i0} , we have $a\omega_{i0}^{s\mp 1} \ge 0$ and $\sum_{s=1}^{n} a\omega_{i0}^{s\mp 1} > 0$. From the assumptions A and B it follows that

$$aA_{i0}^{s}\,\omega_{i0}^{s^{\mp}\,1} \geqslant K_{s}\,a\omega_{i0}^{s^{\mp}\,1\,1}\,, \quad aB_{i0}^{s}\,\omega_{i0}^{s^{\mp}\,1} = b_{i0}^{s}\,a\omega_{i0}^{s^{\mp}\,1}\,, \quad aC_{i0}\,v_{i0} \geqslant 0\,.$$

Then at the point $i^0 h \in \Omega_h$ we obtain

$$(7.5) aL_h v_{i0} \geqslant \sum_{s=1}^n \left(\frac{K_s}{h_s^2} + \frac{b_{i0}^s}{2h_s} \right) \omega_{i0}^{s+1} + \sum_{s=1}^n \left(\frac{K_s}{h_s^2} - \frac{b_{i0}^s}{2h_s} \right) \omega_{i0}^{s-1} + aC_{i0} v_{i0}.$$

For sufficiently small h_s inequality (7.5) implies the inequality $al_h v_i > 0$, which contradicts the assumption $L_h v_i = 0$. Then $i^0 h \notin \Omega_h$ and $i^0 h \in \partial \Omega_h$, which ends the proof.

Theorem 1 implies the following

THEOREM 7.2. If the matrix C is non-positive and the matrices A^s , B^s , s = 1, 2, ..., n, satisfy the assumptions A and B, then the function $R = (v, v)^{1/2}$ attains its maximum on the boundary $\partial \Omega_h$ of the net $\overline{\Omega}_h$.

Proof. Let us suppose that v_i is not constant function and $R_{i0} = \max R_i$. Then there exists a hyperplane l_{i0} supporting the set Ω_h at the point v_{i0} . Furthermore $R_{i0} > 0$ and at least one of the points $v_{i0}^{s \mp 1}$, s = 1, 2, ..., n, does not lie on the hyperplane l_{i0} . For $a = -v_{i0}/R_{i0}$ we have

$$aC_{i0} v_{s0} = -\frac{1}{R_{i0}} v_{i0} C_{i0} v_{i0} \ge 0.$$

Hence the assumptions of Theorem 1 hold and therefore $i^0 h$ belongs to $\partial \Omega_h$. For v_i = constant this theorem is obvious. This ends the proof.

EXAMPLE. Let us consider the following system:

(7.6)
$$A^{1} \frac{\partial^{2} u}{\partial x_{1}^{2}} + A^{2} \frac{\partial^{2} u}{\partial x_{2}^{2}} = 0,$$

where $u=(u_1, u_2)$, $A^1=E$, $A^2=(a_{rs})_{r,s=1,2}$, $a_{11}=a_{22}=0$, $a_{12}=a_{21}=1$. It is easily seen that the vector $a=(a_1, a_2)$ has to satisfy, for every $\eta=(\eta_1, \eta_2)$, the inequalities $aA^1\eta a\eta \geqslant K_1(a\eta^2)$, $aA^2\eta a\eta \geqslant K_2(a\eta^2)$ in order to fulfil the assumption B. Since for $a_1=a_2=\pm 1/\sqrt{2}$

$$aA^1 \eta a \eta = (a\eta^2), \quad aA^2 \eta a \eta = (a\eta^2),$$

٩,

the vector $a = (\pm 1/\sqrt{2}, \pm 1/\sqrt{2})$ satisfies the assumption B. Let v_i be a solution of the difference equations

$$(7.7) A1 \Delta1 V1 vi + A2 \Delta2 V2 vi = 0 for ih \in \Omegah.$$

From Theorem 2 it follows that if the function $R = (v, v)^{1/2}$ attains its maximum equal to R_{i0} in the direction of the vector $a = (\pm 1/\sqrt{2}, \pm 1/\sqrt{2})$, then $i_0 h$ belongs to $\partial \Omega_h$.

§ 8. A strong maximum principle for an elliptic system of nonlinear equations

1. W. J. Skorobogatko [7] proved the maximum principle for a system of two differential equations of the Monge-Ampere type. Here we extend this result and present a difference analogue of the maximum principle for the system of equations of form (8.1) (cf. [11]). We give certain sufficient conditions for the strong maximum principle. Other sufficient conditions for this principle and for non-linear of equations are presented in article by R. M. Redheffer [4] and in the monograph by W. Walter [15].

Let $D_k \subset R^k$ be a bounded domain and let

$$\begin{split} \Omega &= \big\{ (x,r,s_x,t_{xx}); \ x = (x_1,x_2,...,x_n) \in D_n; \ r = (r_1,r_2,...,r_p) \in D^p; \\ s_x &= (s_1^1,s_2^1,...,s_p^1,s_1^2,s_2^2,...,s_p^2,...,s_p^n) \in D_{np}; \\ t_{xx} &= (t_1^{11},t_1^{12},t_1^{1n},t_2^{11},t_2^{12},...,t_2^{1n},...,t_p^{1n},...,t_p^{nn}) \in D_{npn} \big\}. \end{split}$$

Let us consider the following system of equations:

(8.1)
$$\sum_{i,k=1}^{n} A^{ik}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) \frac{\partial^{2} u}{\partial x_{1} \partial x_{k}} +$$

$$+ \sum_{i=1}^{n} B^{i}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) \frac{\partial u}{\partial x_{i}} + C(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) u$$

$$= \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} \left[F^{ik}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) v^{ik} + \sum_{v=1}^{p} C^{ik}_{v}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) u w^{ik}_{v} \right],$$

where

$$\begin{split} u &= \left[u_1, u_2, \dots, u_p\right]^T, \quad v^{ik} &= \left[v_1^{ik}, v_2^{ik}, \dots, v_p^{ik}\right]^T, \\ v_l^{ik} &= \sum_{m=1}^p u_m \left(\frac{\partial^2 u_m}{\partial x_1^2} \frac{\partial^2 u_l}{\partial x_k^2} - \frac{\partial^2 u_m}{\partial x_i \partial x_k} \frac{\partial u_l}{\partial x_i \partial x_k}\right), \\ w_l^{ik} &= \frac{\partial^2 u_l}{\partial x_l^2} \frac{\partial^2 u_l}{\partial x_k^2} - \left(\frac{\partial^2 u_l}{\partial x_i \partial x_k}\right)^2 \end{split}$$

and A^{ik} , B^{i} , C, F^{ik} , G^{ik}_{ν} are matrices of the dimension $p \times p$, A^{T} is the transposed matrix to A.

Assumptions. 1° The coefficients of the system of equations (8.1) are continuous in Ω .

 2° $A^{ik}(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) = a_{ik}(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) E$, where E is the unit matrix, and $A = (a_{ik})$ is a matrix symmetric and positive defined in Ω .

3° The matrices F^{ik} , G^{ik} , i, k = 1, 2, ..., n, v = 1, 2, ..., p, satisfy the following conditions: $F^{ik}(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) = f^{ik}(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) E$, the function $f^{ik}(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) \leq 0$ for $(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) \in \Omega$, and $G^{ik}_v(x, u, u_x, u_{xx})$ are asymmetric matrices i, k = 1, 2, ..., n, v = 1, 2, ..., p.

Let u(x) be a smooth solution of system (8.1) in D_n ,

$$R(x) = (u_1^2(x) + u_2^2(x) + ... + u_n^2(x))^{1/2},$$

and let e(x) be the unit vector in direction of the vector u(x). We introduce the following notations:

$$\mu_0 = e(x), \quad \mu_i = \frac{\partial e}{\partial x_i}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., n,$$

$$\Phi = \sum_{i,k=0}^n (\bar{A}^{ik} \mu_i, \mu_k),$$

where $\bar{A}^{00} = C$, $\bar{A}^{i0} = \frac{1}{2}B^i$, $\bar{A}^{0i} = (A^{i0})^{\phi}$, $\bar{A}^{ik} = -A^{ik}$, i, k = 1, 2, ..., n. Now, we prove the following

THEOREM 8.1. If the function R(x) attains its maximum at the point $x^0 \in D_n$ and in a neighbourhood K of the point x^0 the function Φ is not greater than 0, then $R(x) = R(x^0)$ for every $x \in \overline{D}_n$.

Proof. Substituting u(x) = e(x) R(x) for $R(x) \neq 0$ in (8.1), we have

$$(8.2) \qquad \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} a_{ik} e^{\frac{\partial^{2} R}{\partial x_{1} \partial x_{k}}} + \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left[B^{i} e + 2 \sum_{k=1}^{n} a_{ik} \frac{\partial e}{\partial x_{k}} \right] + \frac{\partial R}{\partial x_{i}} +$$

$$+ \left[Ce + \sum_{i=1}^{n} B^{i} \frac{\partial e}{\partial x_{i}} + \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} a_{ik} \frac{\partial^{2} e}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{i}} \right] R$$

$$= \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} \left[F^{ik} v^{ik} + R \sum_{v=1}^{p} G^{ik}_{v} ew^{ik}_{v} \right].$$

Multiplying both sides of the *l*th equation, l = 1, 2, ..., p, of system (8.2) by the *l*th component of the vector e(x) and taking the sum of all the equations, we obtain the following equation:

$$(8.3) \quad \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} a_{ik} \frac{\partial^{2} R}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} + \sum_{i=1}^{n} (B^{i} e, e) \frac{\partial R}{\partial x_{i}} + \left[(Ce, e) + \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left(B^{i} \frac{\partial e}{\partial x_{i}}, e \right) + \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} a_{ik} \left(e, \frac{\partial^{2} e}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} \right) \right] R$$

$$= \frac{1}{R} \sum_{i,k=1}^{n} \left[(F^{ik} u, v^{ik}) + \sum_{v=1}^{p} (G^{ik}_{v} u, u) w_{v}^{ik} \right].$$

Now, we use the following relations:

(8.4)
$$\left(e, \frac{\partial^2 e}{\partial x_i \partial x_i}\right) = -\left(\frac{\partial e}{\partial x_i}, \frac{\partial e}{\partial x_k}\right)$$
 for $i, k = 1, 2, ..., n$.

In the neighbourhood K of the point x^0 , we have

(8.5)
$$\sum_{i,k=1}^{n} \frac{\partial^{2} R}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} \lambda_{i} \lambda_{k} \leq 0, \quad (\lambda_{1}, \lambda_{2}, ..., \lambda_{n}) \in \mathbb{R}^{n}.$$

Inequality (8.5) implies the following inequality:

(8.6)
$$\sum_{i,k=1}^{n} \sum_{s=1}^{p} u_{s} \left(\frac{\partial^{2} u_{s}}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} \right) \lambda_{i} \lambda_{k} \leq 0,$$

for $x \in K$ and $(\lambda_1, \lambda_2, ..., \lambda_n) \in R^n$. From inequality (8.6) we have

(8.7)
$$\begin{vmatrix} \sum_{s=1}^{p} u_{s} \frac{\partial^{2} u_{s}}{\partial x_{i}^{2}} & \sum_{s=1}^{p} u_{s} \frac{\partial^{2} u_{s}}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} \\ \sum_{s=1}^{p} u_{s} \frac{\partial^{2} u_{s}}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} & \sum_{s=1}^{p} u_{s} \frac{\partial^{2} u_{s}}{\partial x_{k}^{2}} \end{vmatrix} \leq 0,$$

for $x \in K$, i, k = 1, 2, ..., n. From assumption 3° and inequality (8.7) it follow that the right side of equation (8.3) is not negative. So, we have

(8.8)
$$\sum_{i,k=1}^{n} a_{ik} \frac{\partial^{2} R}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{k}} + \sum_{i=1}^{n} b^{i} \frac{\partial R}{\partial x_{i}} + \Phi R \geq 0,$$

for $x \in K$, where $b^l = (B^l e, e)$. Let D_{\max} be a set of points $x \in \overline{D}_n$ in whice the function R(x) attains its maximum $R(x^0) \neq 0$. The set D_{\max} is closed. Let $\overline{x} \in S_{\max}$, where S_{\max} denotes the boundary of D_{\max} . Let us take $\varepsilon >$ so small that in the sphere $K(\overline{x}, \varepsilon) \subset D_n$ the assumptions of the theorem are satisfied. Then, inequality (8.8) implies the following inequality:

(8.9)
$$\sum_{i=1}^{n} a_{ik} \frac{\partial^{2} R}{\partial x_{i} \partial x_{i}} + \sum_{i=1}^{n} b^{i} \frac{\partial R}{\partial x_{i}} \geq 0, \quad x \in K(\bar{x}, \varepsilon).$$

So, the function R(x) satisfies the assumptions of the strong maximum principle (cf. E. Hopf [2]) in $K(\bar{x}, \varepsilon)$ and $R(x) = R(x^0)$ for $x \in K(\bar{x}, \varepsilon)$. Thus, we conclude that $D_{\max} = \bar{D}_n$. For $R(x^0) = 0$, we have R(x) = 0 in \bar{D}_n . The end of the proof.

Remark 8.1. The condition $\Phi \leq 0$ (cf. [11]) is satisfied if $(C\overline{u}, u) \geq -\mu(u, u)$ for $(x, u, u_x, u_{xx}) \in \Omega$, where μ is a sufficiently large number.

2. A difference analogue of the maximum principle. Let $D_n \subset R^n$ be a domain consisting of a finite number of parallelepipeds with edges parallel to the hyperplanes of the coordinate system. Below, we consider a difference scheme which approximates the following system of equations:

(8.10)
$$\sum_{s=1}^{n} a^{s}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) \frac{\partial^{2} u}{\partial x_{s}^{2}} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} B^{s}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) \frac{\partial u}{\partial x_{s}} + C(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) u$$

$$= \sum_{s,l=1}^{n} \sum_{v=1}^{p} G_{v}^{sl}(x, u, u_{x}, u_{xx}) u w_{v}^{sl}.$$

We assume that the coefficients of system (8.10) satisfy the conditions 1° , 2° , 3° Let $ih = (i_1 h_1, i_2 h_2, ..., i_n h_n)$, where $i = (i_1, i_2, ..., i_n)$ is a set of integers, $h = (h_1, h_2, ..., h_n)$, $h_s > 0$, s = 1, 2, ..., n. We introduce $\bar{D}_n^h = \{ih \in \bar{D}_n\}$ (\bar{D}_n denotes the closure of the domain D_n). We shall call two points jh, kh, $j = (j_1, j_2, ..., j_n)$, $k = (k_1, k_2, ..., k_n)$, adjacent if $\sum_{s=1}^n |j_s - k_s| = 1$. Then an internal point of the net \bar{D}_n^h may be defined as a point $ih \in D_n$ whose adjacent points all belong to \bar{D}_n . The set of internal points of the net \bar{D}_n^h , we denote by D_n^h . The set $S_n^h = D_n^h - D_n^h$ is the boundary of the net \bar{D}_n^h . The value of the function v at the point ih is denoted by v_i . The system of equations (8.10) is approximated by the following difference scheme

(8.11)
$$\sum_{s=1}^{n} a_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} v_{i} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} B_{i}^{s} \overline{\Delta}_{s} v_{i} + C_{i} v_{i} = \sum_{l,s=1}^{n} \sum_{v=1}^{p} G_{vi}^{sl} v_{i} \delta_{s} w_{vi}^{sl},$$

where $ih \in D_n^h$,

$$\begin{split} \Delta_{s} \, v_{l} &= \frac{v_{i}^{s+1} - v_{i}}{h_{s}} \,, \quad V_{s} \, v_{i} = \frac{v_{l} - v_{i}^{s-1}}{h_{s}} \,, \\ \Delta_{s} \, v_{i} &= \frac{1}{2} \left(\Delta_{s} + V_{s} \right) v_{i} \,, \quad \delta_{s} \, w_{vi}^{sl} = V_{s} \, \Delta_{s} \, w_{vi}^{sl} \, V_{l} \, \Delta_{l} \, w_{vi}^{sl} - \left(V_{s} \, \Delta_{l} \, w_{i}^{sl} \right)^{2} \,, \\ v_{i}^{s\mp 1} &= v \, \left(i_{1} \, h_{1} \,, \, i_{2} \, h_{2} \,, \, \ldots \,, \, \left(i_{s} \mp 1 \right) h_{s} \,, \, \ldots \,, \, i_{n} \, h_{n} \right) . \end{split}$$

It is convenient to introduce the following denotations:

$$A_{i+}^{00} = A_{i-}^{00} = \frac{1}{2}C_{i}, \quad A_{i+}^{k0} = A_{i-}^{k0} = \frac{1}{4}B_{i}, \quad A_{i+}^{0k} = A_{i-}^{0k} = \frac{1}{4}(B^{k})^{T},$$

$$A_{i+}^{kl} = A_{i-}^{kl} = \frac{1}{2}a_{i}^{k}E\delta_{kl}, \quad (\delta_{lk} = 0 \text{ for } l \neq k \text{ and } \delta_{kl} = 1 \text{ for } l = k).$$

$$\mu_{i+}^{0} = \mu_{i-}^{0} = e_{i} \text{ for } R_{i} \neq 0, \quad \mu_{i+}^{0} = \mu_{i-}^{0} = 0 \text{ for } R_{i} = 0,$$

$$\mu_{i+}^{s} = A_{s}e_{i}, \quad \mu_{i-}^{s} = \nabla_{s}e_{i}, \quad s = 1, 2, ..., n.$$

$$\Phi_{i}^{+} = \sum_{l,k=0}^{n} (A_{l+}^{lk}\mu_{l+}^{l}, \mu_{i+}^{k}), \quad \Phi_{i-}^{-} = \sum_{l,k=0}^{n} (A_{i}^{lk}\mu_{l-}^{l}, \mu_{i-}^{k}).$$

Now, we prove the following

THEOREM 8.2. If the function R_i attains its maximum at a point $i^0 h \in D_n^h$ and $\Phi_{i0}^+ + \Phi_{i0}^- \leq 0$, then $R_i = \text{const in } \bar{D}_n^h$.

Proof. Let us perform the following substitutions into system (8.11):

$$\overline{\Delta}_{s} v_{i} = \overline{\Delta}_{s} (e_{i} R_{i}) = \frac{1}{2} (e_{i}^{s+1} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + R_{i} \Delta_{s} e_{i} + e_{i}^{s-1} \nabla_{s} R_{i} + R_{i} \nabla_{s} e_{i}),$$

$$\nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} v_{i} = \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} (e_{i} R_{i}) = e_{i} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \Delta_{s} e_{i} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \nabla_{s} e_{i} \nabla_{s} R_{i} + R_{i} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} e_{i}.$$

$$(8.12) \qquad \sum_{s=1}^{n} e_{i} \alpha_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} \left[\alpha_{i}^{s} (\Delta_{s} e_{i} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \nabla_{s} e_{i} \nabla_{s} R_{i} + \frac{1}{2} B_{i}^{s} (e_{i}^{s+1} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + e_{i}^{s-1} \nabla_{s} R_{i}) \right] + \sum_{s=1}^{n} \left[\alpha_{i}^{s} (\Delta_{s} e_{i} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \nabla_{s} e_{i}) + \sum_{s=1}^{n} \alpha_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} e_{i} \right] R_{i} = \sum_{i, s=1}^{n} \sum_{v=1}^{p} G_{vi}^{si} v_{i} \delta_{s} w_{vi}^{sl}.$$

Multiplying both sides of the *l*th equation, l = 1, 2, ..., p of system (8.12) by the *l*th component of the vector e_i and taking the sum of all the equations, we obtain the following equation:

$$(8.13) \qquad \sum_{s=1}^{n} a_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} b_{i}^{s} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} \vec{b}_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} R_{i} +$$

$$+ \left[(C_{i} e_{i}, e_{i}) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s=1}^{n} (B_{i}^{s} \Delta_{s} e_{i}, e_{i}) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s=1}^{n} (B_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} e_{i}, e_{i}) + \sum_{s=1}^{n} a_{i}^{s} (e_{i}, \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} e_{i}) \right] R_{i} = 0,$$

where

$$b_i^s = a_i^s(e_i, \Delta_s e_i) + \frac{1}{2}(B_i^s e_i^{s+1}, e_i),$$

$$\bar{b}_i^s = a_i^s(e_i, \nabla_s e_i) + \frac{1}{2}(B_i^s e_i^{s-1}, e_i),$$

for $ih \in D_n^h$, s = 1, 2, ..., n. Using the identity $(e_i, e_i) = 1$, we obtain the following equation:

$$(8.14) \qquad \sum_{s=1}^{n} a_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} b_{i}^{s} \Delta_{s} R_{i} + \sum_{s=1}^{n} \overline{b}_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} R_{i} + \\
+ \left[(C_{i} e_{i}, e_{i}) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s=1}^{n} (B_{i}^{s} \Delta_{s} e_{i}, e_{i}) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s=1}^{n} (B_{i}^{s} \nabla_{s} e_{i}, e_{i}) - \\
- \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s=1}^{n} a_{i}^{s} (\Delta_{s} e_{i}, \Delta_{s} e_{i}) - \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s=1}^{n} a_{i}^{s} (\nabla_{s} e_{i}, \nabla_{s} e_{i}) \right] R_{i} = 0.$$

So, we have

$$(8.15) L_h R_i \equiv \sum_{s=1}^n \left(\frac{a_i^s}{h_s^2} + \frac{b_i^s}{h_s} \right) R_i^{s+1} + \sum_{s=1}^n \left(\frac{a_i^s}{h_s^2} - \frac{\vec{b}_i^s}{h_s} \right) R_i^{s-1} +$$

$$+ \sum_{s=1}^n \left(\frac{\vec{b}_i^s}{h_s} - \frac{b_i^s}{h_s} - \frac{2a_i^s}{h_s^2} \right) R_i + (\Phi_i^+ + \Phi_i^-) R_i = 0, \quad ih \in D_n^h$$

Let

$$D_{\max}^{h} = \{ih \in D_{n}^{h}: \max_{jh \in D_{n}^{h}} R_{j} = R_{j}\}$$

and let $D_{\max}^h \neq \bar{D}_n^h$; we have $R \neq \text{const.}$ Then there exists such a point $jh \in D_{\max}^h$ that, at least at one point $kh \in D_n^h$ adjacent to point jh, $R_k < R_j$. Now, we introduce the following sets:

$$S = \{1, 2, ..., n\},\$$

$$S_i^+ = \left\{ s \in S : \frac{a_i^s}{h_s^2} + \frac{b_i^s}{h_s} > 0 \right\},\$$

$$S_i^- = \left\{ s \in S : \frac{a_i^s}{h_s^2} - \frac{b_i^s}{h_s} > 0 \right\}.$$

From equation (8.15) we obtain the following estimation:

$$(8.16) L_{h} R_{J} < R_{j} \left[\sum_{s \in S_{j}^{+}} \left(\frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} + \frac{b_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} \right) + \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left(\frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} - \frac{b_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} \right) + \right. \\ + \sum_{s \in S} \left(\frac{\bar{b}_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} - \frac{b_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} - \frac{2a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} \right) + \Phi_{j}^{+} + \Phi_{j}^{-} \right] \\ = R_{J} \left[\sum_{s \in S - S_{j}^{-}} \left(\frac{\bar{b}_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} - \frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} \right) + \sum_{s \in S - S_{j}^{+}} \left(\frac{b_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} - \frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} \right) + (C_{j} e_{j}, e_{j}) + \right.$$

$$\begin{split} &+ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S} \left(B_{j}^{s} \Delta_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S} \left(B_{j}^{s} \nabla_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) - \\ &- \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S} a_{j}^{s} \left(\Delta_{s} e_{j}, \Delta_{s} e_{j} \right) - \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S} a_{j}^{s} (\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j}) \right] \\ &= R_{j} \left\{ \sum_{s \in S - S_{j}^{+}} \left[-\frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}} (e_{j}, \Delta_{s} e_{j}) - \frac{1}{2h_{s}} \left(B_{j}^{s} e_{j}^{s+1}, e_{j} \right) - \frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} + \right. \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \left(B_{j}^{s} \Delta_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\Delta_{s} e_{j}, \Delta_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \sum_{s \in S - S_{j}^{-}} \left[\frac{a_{j}}{h_{s}^{2}} \left(e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) + \frac{1}{2h_{s}} \left(B_{j}^{s} e_{j}^{s-1}, e_{j} \right) - \frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} + \right. \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \left(B_{j}^{s} \nabla_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \left(C_{j} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) + \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[\left(B_{j}^{s} \Delta_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) - a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[\left(B_{j}^{s} \nabla_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) - a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{s \in S - S_{j}^{-}} \left[\left(B_{j}^{s} \nabla_{s} e_{j}, e_{j} \right) - a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \left. + K_{s} \left(\Delta_{s} e_{j}, \Delta_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\Delta_{s} e_{j}, \Delta_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \left. + \sum_{s \in S - S_{j}^{-}} \left[\frac{a_{j}}{h_{s}} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} + \frac{K_{s}}{h_{s}} - \frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} + \right. \\ &+ \left. + K_{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + K_{0} + \\ &+ \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[K_{s} \left(A_{s} e_{j}, A_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(A_{s} e_{j}, A_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[K_{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[K_{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[K_{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right)^{1/2} - \frac{1}{2} a_{j}^{s} \left(\nabla_{s} e_{j}, \nabla_{s} e_{j} \right) \right] + \\ &+ \sum_{s \in S_{j}^{-}} \left[K_{s} \left($$

where $K_0 = n \sup_{l,k} \sup_{lh \in D_n^h} |C_i^{lk}|$, $K_s = \sup_{l,k} \sup_{lh \in D_n^h} |B_i^{slk}|$. Let us consider the fol-

lowing set of auxiliary functions:

$$G_i^s(t) = \left(K_s + \frac{a_i^s}{h_s}\right)t - \frac{a_i^s}{2}t^2 + \frac{K_s}{h_s} - \frac{a_i^s}{h_s^2}, \quad H_i^s(t) = K_s t - \frac{a_i^s}{2}t^2.$$

Thus, estimation (8.16) implies the inequality

$$(8.17) L_h R_j < R_j \Big[\sum_{s \in S - S_j^+} G_{\max}^s + \sum_{s \in S - S_j^-} G_{\max}^s + \sum_{s \in S_j} H_{\max}^s - \sum_{s \in S_j} H_{\max}^s + K_0 \Big].$$

where

$$G_{\max}^{s} = \max_{-\alpha < i < +\infty} G_{j}^{s}(t) = -\frac{a_{j}^{s}}{h_{s}^{2}} + \frac{K_{s}}{2a_{j}^{s}} + \frac{2K_{s}}{h_{s}},$$

$$H_{\max} = \max_{-\infty < i < +\infty} H_{j}^{s}(t) = \frac{K_{s}}{2a_{j}^{s}}.$$

For sufficiently small h and $S^+ \neq S$ or $S^- \neq S$ from (8.17) we have

$$(8.18) L_h R_j < 0.$$

On the other hand, we have the equality

$$(8.19) L_h R_i = 0,$$

which contradicts (8.18). Thus, we have $D_{\max}^h = D_n^h$ and $R_i = \text{const}$ in \bar{D}_n^h . For $S^+ = S^- = S$ equation (8.15) implies the inequality

(8.20)
$$L_h R_i < (\Phi_i^+ + \Phi_i^-) R_i \le 0,$$

which also contradicts (8.18). The end of the proof.

Remark 8.2. The condition $\Phi_i^+ + \Phi_i^- \le 0$ is satisfied if $(C_i v_i, v_i) \ge -\mu(v_i, v_i)$ where $\mu \ge Kn/4a$, $K = \max_s K_s$, $a = \inf_s \inf_{\Omega} a^s(x, r, s_x t_{xx})$.

References

- [1] I. H. Bramble and B. E. Hubbard, On a finite difference analogue of an elliptic boundary problem which is neither diagonally dominant nor of non-negative type, J. Math. and Phys. 43 (1964), pp. 117-132.
- [2] E. Hopf, Elementare Betrachtung über die Lostungen partieller Differentialgleichungen zweiter Ordnung von elliptischen Typus, Sitzungsberichte Preuss. Acad. Wiss. 19 (1927), pp. 147-152.
- [3] M. Krzyżański, Równania różniczkowe cząstkowe rzędu drugiego, Część I, Warszawa 1957.
- [4] R. M. Redheffer, An extension of certain maximum principle, Monatch. Math. 6 (1962), pp. 32-42.
- [5] I. A. Rus, Un principle du maximum pour les solutions d'un système fortment elliptique, Glasnik Mat. Ser. III 4 (24) (1969), pp. 75-77.
- [6] А. А. Самарский, Введение в теорию разностных схем, Москва 1971.
- [7] W. J. Skorobogatko, Studying in Qualitative Theory of Differential Partial Equations, Izdatielstwo Lvovskogo Universiteta, Lvov 1961.
- [8] T. Styś, A maximum principle for systems of ordinary differential equations, Bull. Acad. Polon. Sci. Sér. Sci. Math. Astronom. Phys. 9 (1977), pp. 875-878.
- [9] The method of lines for nonlinear parabolic equations, Bull. Acad. Polon. Sci. Sér. Sci. Math. Astronom. Phys. 9 (1977), pp. 207-210.
- [10] On the maximum principle for certain system of difference equations, Bull. Acad. Polon. Sci. Ser. Sci. Math. Astronom. Phys. 10 (1971), pp. 963-966.
- [11] The maximum principle for system of nonlinear differential equations of the Monge-Ampére type, Lecture Notes in Math. 395 (1974), pp. 235-243.
- [12] On a maximum principle for nonlinear equations, Banach Center Publications, v. 3, Mathematical Models and Numerical Methods, Warszawa (1978), pp. 69-78.
- [13] Aprioristic estimations of solutions of certain elliptic system of partial differential equations, Bull. Acad. Polon. Sci. Sér. Sci. Math. Astronom Phys. 9 (1965), pp. 639-640.
- [14] Zasada maksimum dla pewnych układów równań różniczkowych, Warszawa 1968.
- [15] W. Walter, Differential and Integral Inequalities, Springer-Verlag, Berlin-Heidelberg-New York 1970.
- [16] A. Wakulicz, Metodi alle differenze per equazioni differenziali alle derivate parziali, Roma 1970.
- [17] R. S. Varga, On a discrete maximum principle, SIAM J. Numer. 3 (1966), pp. 335-339.
- [18] D. M. Young, Iterative solution of large linear systems, New York 1971.